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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
BRBERZMERLF (B GEMHEE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Vision
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and together with its

” oo

subsidiaries, the “Group”, “we” or “our”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Group. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any

statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

LISTING

The shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) were successfully listed
(the “Listing”) on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 4 May 2018 (the
“Listing Date”), it was a significant landmark in the development of
the Group. The Listing provides the Company with access to one of
the world’s essential capital markets, boosts up the confidence of the
customers and suppliers of the Group, improves the Group’s
reputation and advances its corporate governance.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Throughout the year of fierce competition and challenging market
environment, the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018 increased to HK$111.9 million, showing a significant
increase of approximately 56.7% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2017. Meanwhile, the net profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 decreased to HK$12.5 million, showing a
decrease of approximately 44.3% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2017. This decrease in profitability was mainly caused by
the significant decrease in the financial guarantee income after the
Listing as a result of the reducing financial guarantee liability, the
increase in administrative expenses due to the increase in staff costs
and professional fees as a result of being a listed company, and the
legal and professional fees arising from the purchase of the
showroom which was an one-off transaction.

Excluding the Listing expenses and financial guarantee income, the
adjusted profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 increased by
HK$2.5 million to HK$15.5 million, from HK$13.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The increase in the adjusted profit was
mainly driven by the increase in revenue.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

PROSPECTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired a new
showroom to showcase its product offerings as one of its business
strategies. The Directors believe that a permanent showroom will give
more confidence to the Group’s customers and strengthen the
Group’s corporate image. In view of the foregoing, the Directors
believe that the Group will be able to solicit new customers, as well
as to increase our geographic footprint to new apparel retail markets,
which in turn will drive the business growth of the Group. The Board
will also continue to explore opportunities to diversify the Group’s
operations so that our customer base could be further strengthened
and diversified.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to the Group’s management and staff for their
commitment and dedication throughout the year. | would also like to
express my deep gratitude to all our business partners, customers,
suppliers and the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
for their continuous support. The growth of the Group would not be
attained without the support and efforts from all the stakeholders. We
shall continue to strive our best to develop and grow to maximise
values for our Shareholders.

Ko Sin Yun
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an apparel supply chain management (“SCM”) services
provider based in Hong Kong delivering one-stop solution to
customers in Europe and Asia. We have developed a vertically
integrated business model and our services range across market
trend analysis, product design and development, sourcing of
suppliers, production management, logistics services and quality
control. We primarily generate revenue from the supply of middle to
high-end apparel products to the customers. Through engaging us
for apparel SCM services, our customers are able to focus their
resources on their retail businesses and respond quickly to the fast-
evolving changes of fashion industry, as they do not have to
separately engage different suppliers for various types of services
throughout the apparel supply chain.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately HK$111.9 million, showing a significant increase of
approximately 56.7% as compared to revenue of approximately
HK$71.4 million for the same period in 2017. The gross profit margin
of the Group decreased to 28.5% for the year ended 31 December
2018 as compared to 37.2% from the preceding year. This change in
the Group’s profitability was mainly attributable by the change in
customer mix of the Group.

Despite the abovementioned decrease in gross profit margin, with an
increase in revenue, the gross profit increased from HK$26.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to HK$31.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Excluding the Listing expenses and financial guarantee income, the
adjusted profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 increased by
HK$2.5 million to HK$15.5 million, from HK$13.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWR DM

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES FEEREEREBERNLER

WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The Group’s business objective is to become a key market player in  AN& [ ) 275 B 1E T AT B IR M fE SR S 18 1T
the Hong Kong apparel SCM industry. The proceeds raised from the  ¥M T BHIZLHEE - FMAEHKEES ERNE
Listing is targeted to be used for expanding our business to maintain B %75 - #EHETES R A EZ T EE MO
and strengthen our market position by pursuing our business FFEf{z - NA T HE A20184F 4 A 23 BB
strategies. An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out ZR2([BRER|) MEEKBZEAERA hH
in the prospectus of the Company date 23 April 2018 (the HEJREE20184 12 431 B IF AR B EFR 275
“Prospectus”) with the Group’s actual business progress for the  E#LLE S HTEINOT

period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2018 is set out

below:

Business objectives

EBER

Actual business progress for the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2018
HLEHmHEMEZ2018512 531 B LHAEH

Continue our growth by solidifying our relationship with
existing customers and exploring new customers
FREERMEREEFPOBERRABNEPTERMAER

Increase our geographic footprint to
new apparel retail markets

EMBEMANEGEEREENRETENS

Set up a new showroom to showcase our product offerings

RILFRINEARTHMNERES

Strengthen our design and development capabilities to
develop new design collections
s LA RR T K B BB ) LA R B BT R AT AR5
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Our staff paid visits to our existing and new customers.

BTHRDHRMEAE RFHEP -

Our staff explored and paid visits to a number of potential
new customers located in Finland, Poland, Spain, Italy,
Korea, Austria and Switzerland. The Group successfully
commenced business relationship with new customers in
Korea, Austria and Switzerland during the year ended 31
December 2018.

B TRERRFARASE - KE - AT - BEXRH - #E -
BN NI LR ZBEFEP - BIE2018F 12 A31 B 1k
FE - ANEBKRINERE - BivF MIn M EFARER
RAMR -

The Group has acquired a new showroom on 10
September 2018 to showcase its product offerings.
REBEP2018F 9 A 10 B U BB BR 5 = AR R E 16 2= i

Ba -

The Group has prepared a wider variety of sample
products for our design collections in our new showroom.
REBERIR ETAEHRME S BENRG RO ANER °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

XEKEEHERERERNER @

Actual Progress for the period from

Business objectives

EBER

the Listing Date to 31 December 2018

Enhance our quality control process

Our quality control team performed on-site quality

inspections at the location of our suppliers.

RARMOEEZD)BZ

Repay bank borrowings

HEZVESRHERMELHETERE SRR -

HK$5.2 million of bank borrowing has been repaid, as set

out in the section headed “Statement of Business

Objectives and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

BB ER [EE B RBRARMSRER SR | &M

BEERTT1E5X5,200,0008 7T °

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 56.7% from HK$71.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to HK$111.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The increase was mainly driven by the
increased revenue from existing customers in Germany and France
and new customers in Korea, Austria and Switzerland.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales mainly consists of purchase costs, import duty and
other cost of sales. Purchase cost represents the cost of finished
goods purchased from suppliers located in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), Madagascar and Cambodia. Cost of sales
increased by 78.2% from HK$44.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$80.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, which was in line with the increase in sales for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit was HK$26.5 million and HK$31.9 million for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, respectively. Gross profit
margin decreased from 37.2% for the year ended 31 December 2017
10 28.5% for the year ended 31 December 2018, which was mainly
due to the change in customer mix of the Group. In addition, the
gross profit margins of new customers in Germany and France were
lower than the overall average gross profit margin which enabled the
Group to develop the German and French apparel market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other income

Other income amounted to HK$22.3 million and HK$2.8 million for
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, respectively, mainly
representing the financial guarantee income and sample sales
income. As the Group provided cross financial guarantee in favour of
banks for bank loans of certain related companies, such arrangement
resulted in a financial guarantee liability recognised at fair value at
initial recognition. Such financial guarantee liability had been
amortised over the term of the financial guarantee contract and be
recognised as financial guarantee income. The financial guarantee
income decreased significantly as all financial guarantee liability was
released upon Listing and no financial guarantee income has been
incurred thereafter.

Other losses

Other losses mainly represents (i) the net loss on structured foreign
currency forward contracts; and (ii) the net foreign exchange loss
resulted from fluctuations in the exchange rate of the foreign currency
incurred in our operation. Following the change in functional currency
to United States Dollars (‘US$”) during the year ended 31 December
2017, the effect of foreign currency was insignificant to the Group.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly include staff costs, customer
service fee, freight and transportation cost, travelling expenses,
design fee, sample and development cost and other selling and
distribution expenses.

Selling and distribution expenses amounted to HK$6.1 million and
HK$7.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018
respectively. Such increase was primarily due to the increase in our
staff cost, travelling expenses and design fee as a result of the
increased sales during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly include professional fees, staff costs
(including Directors’ remuneration), amortisation of intangible assets,
depreciation, rent and rates and other administrative expenses.

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$4.2 million and HK$7.8
million for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 respectively.
Such increase was mainly due to (i) an increase in our staff costs and
professional fees as a result of being a listed company, (i) the legal
and professional fees of approximately HK$0.4 million arising from the
purchase of showroom which was an one-off transaction and (iii) the
amortisation of intangible assets resulting from the acquisition of two
trademarks in July 2017. Amortisation of intangible assets is
recognised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of 10
years.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$0.4 million and HK$0.2
million for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 respectively.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in average bank
borrowing balance during the year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense mainly represents Hong Kong profits tax on the
assessable profits arising from Hong Kong and is amounted to
HK$2.7 million and HK$3.2 million for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018, respectively.

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to owners of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 was HK$12.5 million, while the Group recorded a
profit attributable to owners of the Group of HK$22.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017. Such decrease was mainly due to a
drop in the financial guarantee income of HK$20.7 million as a result
of the reducing financial guarantee liability after the Listing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Profit for the year (Continued)

Excluding the Listing expenses and financial guarantee income, the
adjusted profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 increased by
HK$2.5 million to HK$15.5 million, from HK$13.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The increase in the adjusted profit was
mainly driven by the increase in revenue.

Charge on the Group’s assets
As at 31 December 2018, the Group mortgaged the property
comprising workshops 1-3 and 5-7 on 3rd Floor of China United
Plaza, No. 1008 Tai Nan West Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong to a bank
for the bank finance facility for the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged a bank deposits of
approximately HK$18.0 million to a bank to secure cross financial
guarantee in favour of banks for bank loans of certain related
companies. Such financial guarantee provided by the Group to
related companies has been released upon Listing.

Share capital

The Shares were successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date and there has been no change in the
capital structure of the Group since then. The share capital of the
Group only comprises ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2018, the
Company’s issued share capital was HK$10,000,000 and the number
of its issued shares was 1,000,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

Related Party Transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company purchased
certain goods from Meridian Industries Garment (Cambodia) Limited
(“MIGCL”). MIGCL is controlled by Mr. Ko Sek Yan (“Mr. Murray
Ko”), the elder brother of Mr. Ko Sin Yun (“Mr. Ko”). The cumulative
purchase from MIGCL for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$2.97 million. The payment amount was determined
based on market price and our Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) considered that the connected transaction
as described above has been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group and had been based on arm’s length
negotiations and on normal commercial terms.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 20.74 of the GEM Listing Rules, the relevant
applicable percentage ratios (other than the profit ratio) was
prescribed under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules of transactions
contemplated under the above arrangements was less than 5% and
the total consideration was less than HK$3 million, hence the
connected transaction contemplated herein was fully exempt from
the annual review, reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Major and Connected Transaction

On 10 September 2018, Vision Garments Limited (“Vision
Garments”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in Hong Kong, being the purchaser (the “Purchaser”)
and Wisewing International Limited being the vendor (the “Vendor”)
entered into the sales and purchase agreement to acquire a property
comprising workshops 1-3 and 5-7 on 3rd Floor of China United
Plaza, No. 1008 Tai Nan West Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong as
showroom at the consideration of HK$27.5 million (the
“Consideration”). The Vendor is beneficially wholly owned by Mr.
Murray Ko. As Mr. Murray Ko is the elder brother of Mr. Ko and Mr.
Ko is a controlling Shareholder holding 75% of the issued share
capital of the Company, the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director of the Company, the Vendor is an associate (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) of Mr. Ko and hence a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at 31
December 2018, the Consideration has been fully settled. For details
of the transaction, please refer to the circular of the Company dated
21 September 2018 and the relevant poll results announcement
dated 15 October 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Financial guarantee liability and contingent liabilities
Before the Listing, the Group and certain companies controlled by
Mr. Murray Ko and his spouse entered into several banking facilities
agreements and cross guarantees were provided by the Group and
such companies controlled by Mr. Murray Ko and his spouse. The
estimated fair value of the financial guarantee was recognised as
financial guarantee liability with the equivalent amount charged to
equity as shareholder distribution at the agreement date. The financial
guarantee income was recognised in profit or loss over the term of
agreement. The financial guarantee liabilities were all denominated in
HK$. For further information about our financial guarantee liability,
please refer to note 23 to the Accountants’ Report set out in
Appendix | of the Prospectus. Such financial guarantee provided by
the Group to related companies was released upon Listing.

Save as the abovementioned financial guarantee liability which was
released upon the Listing, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees as at 31 December 2018.

Foreign exchange exposure

The revenue of the Group is mainly denominated in US$, while a
certain amount of the revenue is denominated in HK$ and Euro
(“EURU).

The Group considers that the foreign exchange risk with respect to
US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$.

For the transaction denominated in EUR during the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group considers there is no significant foreign
exchange risks in respect of EUR.

Nevertheless, the Group will endeavour to manage the foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring the movement of foreign currency
rates and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

PROSPECTS

The Listing marks a major milestone as well as a new chapter of the
Company. Due to the uncertainties of the Hong Kong economy, the
Directors anticipate that the Group’s business will face various
challenges in the foreseeable future such as (i) the reliance on a
limited number of major customers; (ii) the fast-changing fashion
trends; (iii) the reliance on third party suppliers for the manufacturing
of apparel products; and (iv) the increase in cost of raw materials and
labour.

Nonetheless, the management of the Company is confident that the
Group can succeed and enhance the shareholders’ value, based on
the years of experience of the senior management of the Company in
apparel SCM market. Going forward, the Group’s objective is to
become a key market player in the Hong Kong apparel SCM industry,
with an aim to optimise the returns to the Group’s shareholders. The
Group will continue to strengthen its key market player position in the
apparel SCM industry in Hong Kong and enhance the overall
competitiveness and market share.

With our objective of becoming a key market player in the Hong Kong
apparel SCM industry, we will continue our growth by solidifying our
relationship with existing customers and exploring new customers,
increase our geographic footprint to new apparel retail markets,
strengthen our design and development capabilities to develop new
design collections, and enhance our quality control process.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the Listing, after deducting the actual
underwriting commission and expenses paid by the Company in
connection thereto, were approximately HK$32.2 million (“Actual Net
Proceeds”). The Company intends to utilise the net proceeds
according to the section headed “Statement of Business Objectives
and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued) FIERERE®)

The table below sets out an adjusted allocation of the Actual Net  T&R#E MR 201812 A 31 BB SR IEF
Proceeds, the actual usage of the Actual Net Proceeds and the HEREHEBDE - BEMERIEFHENSAZA
unutilised Actual Net Proceeds as at 31 December 2018. B RAE A ERFTSRIEFEE -

Actual usage

of the Actual Unutilised
Adjusted Net Proceeds Actual Net
allocation of as at Proceeds as at
the Actual Net 31 December 31 December
Business strategies as set out in the Prospectus Proceeds 2018 2018
H2018 5
12A31HK R2018F
BB BRRE 12831BW
FIEFEMN MIEFEEN REHER
BIRE R P TSR RAEDE RAERAE FEONEEHE
HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million
AEAT AEBET BEET
(1) Continue our growth by solidifying our relationship with
existing customers and exploring new customers 3.3 0.6 2.7
FREFERMERE TP OBERFRBSN T PLEER N
RS
) Set up a new showroom to showcase
our product offerings 17.5 17.5 0.0
BRI EUNRRKMOERES
©) Strengthen our design and development capabilities
to develop new design collections 2.2 0.1 2.1
DNoR IR ATHY 2R 5T Se 5l 88 B 1 PARR B ek 5T R 5]
4) Enhance our quality control process 0.8 0.2 0.6
RARMAE BIFHBIE
5) Repay bank borrowings 5.2 5.2 -
ERIRITIER
6) Fund general working capital needs 3.2 0.8 2.4
BN—REEESHMSE
Total 32.2 24.4 7.8

1BET

The unutilised Actual Net Proceeds is placed in a licensed bank in  ABIRERESRIBIRBERR —BEEEHE
Hong Kong. iTe
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s operations
were generally financed through an internally generated cash flows,
proceeds from the share offer (the “Share Offer”) and borrowings
from banks. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor our current and
expected liquidity requirements and our relationship with banks to
ensure the maintenance of sufficient reserves of cash and funding to
meet the liquidity requirements in both short and long run.

As at 31 December 2018, the total equity of the Group was HK$82.4
million (31 December 2017: HK$37.9 million). The Group’s cash and
cash equivalent as at 31 December 2018 was HK$37.8 million (31
December 2017: HK$23.8 million). The Group’s bank borrowings as
at 31 December 2018 was HK$10.9 million (31 December 2017:
HK$6.8 million). Our working capital represented by the net current
assets as at 31 December 2018 was HK$44.1 million (31 December
2017: HK$28.1 million). Our current ratio was 3.0 times as at 31
December 2018, increased from 2.7 times as at 31 December 2017.
Such increase in working capital and current ratio was mainly due to
the substantial increase in the bank balances and cash from the net
proceeds raised from the Listing. Our turnover days of trade
receivables and trade payables were 45.0 days and 22.9 days for the
year ended 31 December 2018, respectively (31 December 2017:
39.6 days and 19.9 days respectively). Such increase in trade
receivables turnover days is mainly due to an increase in trade
receivables balances as at 31 December 2018, while such increase in
trade payables turnover days is mainly due to an increase in trade
payables balances as at 31 December 2018. Our gearing ratio
(calculated based on bank borrowings divided by total equity) was
13.2% as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: 17.9%), such
decrease was mainly due to the substantial increase in the equity
after Listing.

Based on the above analysis, coupled with sufficient cash and bank
balances, our strong and sound financial position offers adequate
liquidity and financial resources to meet our working capital
requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREWR DM

DIVIDENDS

The Board has declared interim dividends with an aggregate amount
of HK$6.5 million (2017: HK$4.3 million) to its then sole shareholder
in April 2018 which had been fully settled. The Board has also
declared a third quarter dividend of HK$0.01 per Share, amounting to
a total of HK$10 million (corresponding period in 2017: Nil) which was
paid on 18 December 2018.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.013
per Share, amounting to a total of HK$13 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: Nil) to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 10 May 2019.
The proposed final dividend, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
to be held on 3 May 2019, will be paid on or about 23 May 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
29 April 2019 to Friday, 3 May 2019 (both days inclusive) during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares
of the Company shall ensure that all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 26 April 2019.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented for the Group as disclosed on
note 5 of the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total number of 11
full-time employees and engaged three external design consultants
(31 December 2017: ten full-time employees and three external
design consultants). The staff costs of the Group (including Directors’
remuneration, employees’ salaries, wages, other benefits and
contribution to defined contribution retirement plan) for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were approximately HK$5.1 million (2017:
HK$4.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
(Continued)

Our remuneration package includes basic salary, bonuses and
allowances. We review the performance of our employees regularly,
and the review outcome is used for the employees’ salary review and
promotion appraisal. We have set up a competitive remuneration
system that links a portion of our employees’ compensation to the
performance of our business in order to provide incentives to our
employees to strive for better results.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not made any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures (2017: Nil).

COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have significant capital
commitments (31 December 2017: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired a new
showroom to showcase its product offerings as one of its business
strategies.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2018.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERESREEBNERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ko Sin Yun (S #tE0) (“Mr. Ko”), aged 57, is the chairman of the
Board and an executive Director of the Group. Mr. Ko was appointed
as our executive Director and chairman of the Board on 19 January
2017 and 8 July 2017 respectively. He is the father of Mr. Ko Man Ho
(“Mr. Morris Ko”). He is primarily responsible for overseeing overall
management, business development strategic planning of the Group.
He has been the director of Vision Garments and Market Gala Limited
(“Market Gala”) since 22 March 2010 and 20 March 2010,
respectively.

Mr. Ko has more than 20 years of managerial and entrepreneurial
experience. He founded the Group in March 2010. Mr. Ko has been
involved in the trading business in Hong Kong since 1998. He is the
founder and a director of Silverise Electronic Limited (iRZEE F B R A
7]), a company incorporated in Hong Kong in February 1988 and
principally engaged in the trading of electronic components in Hong
Kong. Mr. Ko is also the director of Azima International Company
Limited (F8 A BIBR B BR A A)), a private company in Hong Kong with its
principal business activity being property investments. Mr. Ko
obtained a bachelor’s degree of engineering in electronics engineering
from Chung Yuan Christian University in Taiwan in June 1983.

Mr. Ko Man Ho (53 ), aged 29, was appointed as our executive
Director and chief executive officer on 8 July 2017 and 1 January
2017, respectively. He is the son of Mr. Ko. He is primarily responsible
for the overall management and administration of the business
operation of the Group.

He has been a director of Vision Garments since 15 May 2017. Mr.
Morris Ko joined Vision Garments as merchandiser in August 2010. In
April 2014, Mr. Morris Ko’s employment with Vision Garments was
transferred to Meridian Industries Limited (“Meridian”) and he worked
for Meridian as merchandiser. In view of the business needs of Vision
Garments, Mr. Morris Ko had been designated by Meridian to work
for Vision Garments exclusively and had been in charge of our sales
and sourcing team from December 2014 until December 2016. Since
January 2017, Mr. Morris Ko was again employed by Vision Garments
and has acted as our chief executive officer. Mr. Morris Ko graduated
from Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Kap Yan Directors’ College in
Hong Kong in May 2007 .
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEENBERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Cheng Ka Wing (#£%%8) (‘Mr. Cheng”), aged 37, was appointed
as our executive Director on 8 July 2017. He is also the compliance
officer of the Group. Mr. Cheng is primarily responsible for the
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting, financial planning,
treasury and internal control. In January 2017, Mr. Cheng joined the
Group as the chief financial officer of Vision Garments. He has been a
director of Vision Garments since 1 June 2017.

Mr. Cheng has accumulated over 10 years of experience mainly in
asset management, corporate finance and treasury management.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked at Standard Chartered
Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from November 2006 to September 2007
as an analyst, at BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch as an analyst from
October 2007 to February 2013, at Meridian and Wisewing Business
Centre Limited from August 2013 to September 2014 as chief
investment officer, and at New Rise Construction Engineering Limited
from October 2014 to December 2016 as financial controller.

Mr. Cheng graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in social sciences in December 2003, and from the
University of Durham with a master’s degree in financial management
in January 2006. He is a CFA® charterholder since September 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. To King Yan, Adam (£ 51=) (“Mr. To”), aged 59, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 16 April 2018. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the management independently
and providing independent judgement on the issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. To worked at the Legal Department of Hong Kong (currently the
Department of Justice of Hong Kong) as Assistant Crown Counsel
from September 1984 to September 1986 and as Crown Counsel
from September 1986 to February 1987. Mr. To joined K.B. Chau &
Co., a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong, since February 1987 and is
currently a partner of this firm with his practice focusing on
conveyancing and litigation. Mr. To graduated from the University of
London with a bachelor of laws degree in 1983. Mr. To has been a
practising solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1986. In
addition, he is also qualified to practise law in England and Wales and
Australia, and is a China Appointed Attesting Officer. Since August
2009, Mr. To has been an independent non-executive director of
Rykadan Capital Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2288). Mr. To was an independent
non-executive director of Shen You Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8377) from
November 2017 to September 2018.

Mr. Kwok Chee Kin (&
as our independent non-executive Director on 16 April 2018. He is

) (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 59, was appointed

primarily responsible for overseeing the management independently
and providing independent judgement on the issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.
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EENEREEENBERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Kwok is a physiotherapist with more than thirty years’ experience.
He worked as a physiotherapist at the Medical and Health
Department of Hong Kong (currently the Department of Health of
Hong Kong) from August 1982 to December 1985. From January
1987 to February 1994, he worked in Australia. He worked part-time
or full time at various hospitals and clinics including Hampton
Rehabilitation Hospital, Box Hill Hospital, Royal Children Hospital and
Medical Center in Ford Motor Company, and established his own
clinic, the Victoria Sports Spinal Physiotherapy and Acupuncture
Clinics. In February 1994, he moved back to Hong Kong and
established the ASA Physiotherapy Clinics. Mr. Kwok was also the
team physiotherapist for various sports teams in Australia and in
Hong Kong. He was invited to be the team physiotherapist for the
Hong Kong Olympic Committee, at 1996 Summer Olympic Games.
He was also a physiotherapist for the 12th Asian Games held in 1994,
the 2nd East Asian Games held in 1997, the 13th Asian Games held
in 1998 and the 3rd East Asian Games held in 2001. Mr. Kwok
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a professional diploma in
physiotherapy in 1982, The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
master of sciences degree in 2006 and the Hong Kong Baptist
University with a bachelor of Chinese medicine degree in 2008. He is
currently a registered physiotherapist and a registered Chinese
medicine practitioner.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Chan Kim Sun (BR®1£2) (‘Mr. Chan”), aged 37, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 16 April 2018. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the management independently
and providing independent judgement on the issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

From October 2004 to March 2010, Mr. Chan joined HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited, an established firm of certified public
accountants as an accountant before being promoted as audit
manager in April 2008. From August 2011 to September 2014, Mr.
Chan served as finance controller and from September 2012 to
September 2014 as company secretary of China Infrastructure
Investment Limited, a company primarily engaged in properties
investment, sale of natural gas as well as investment holding, and the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 600).
Mr. Chan is currently a non-practising member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan graduated
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in business administration majoring in accounting
and finance in November 2003. Since December 2015, Mr. Chan has
been an independent non-executive director of Virscend Education
Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1565).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEENBERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lam Hau Chu (MI52k) (“Ms. Lam”), aged 53, was appointed
as our design manager on 1 January 2017. She is primarily
responsible for overseeing the product design and development of
the Group.

Ms. Lam has been working in the apparel industry for 29 years. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Lam worked as merchandiser at Meridian
from April 1989 to August 2010. Ms. Lam joined the Group in
September 2010 as designer of Vision Garments. In April 2015,
pursuant to a management arrangement with Meridian, our related
party, for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2016 (the
“Management Arrangement”), Ms. Lam’s employment was
transferred to Meridian, which then re-assigned Ms. Lam to work at
Vision Garments as designer and in charge of our design team. As
the Management Arrangement was terminated in December 2016,
Ms. Lam was again employed by Vision Garments as design manager
on 1 January 2017. Ms. Lam graduated from Kit Sam Middle School
in 1984.

Ms. Lo Wai Han (& £ ) (‘Ms. Lo”), aged 61, was appointed as
our quality control manager on 1 January 2017. She is primarily
responsible for overseeing the quality control aspects of the Group’s
business.

Ms. Lo has over 25 years of garment quality control experience in the
apparel industry. Ms. Lo had worked at Meridian as quality control
staff since August 1992. From December 2014 to December 2016,
Ms. Lo had been designated by Meridian to work for Vision Garments
exclusively as quality control supervisor in charge of our quality
control team. Since January 2017, Ms. Lo has been employed by
Vision Garments as quality control manager.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREABE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to maintaining and achieving
high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that throughout the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2018, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
securities transaction by directors (the “Required Standard”).

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Required Standard
throughout the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018.

The Company has also extended the coverage of the Required
Standard adoption to the senior management of the Company who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company (the “relevant employees”). No incident
of non-compliance of the Required Standard by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ko Sin Yun (Chairman of the Board and Chairman of
the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Ko Man Ho (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Ka Wing (Chief Financial Officer and Compliance Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. To King Yan, Adam (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Kwok Chee Kin (Member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Chan Kim Sun (Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 20 to 25 of this annual report.

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the
respective Director’s biography under the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on page 20 to 25 of this
annual report.

£
EFSEEAEENOES  HIRRRRE - ¥
BB A AR RRERHNATE -

EEgREHRNESARREITERERAE
HEEE - WREBFEAGTRARMRHEETTHLR

=
= ©

EEEHAMN
EFRENRETIHES

BTES
SR EE (EFS LT ERIELZL!

i
T8

E-)

%‘X??E?Ei(fﬁﬂ@ﬁ)
B RAE (HBRRERERLTE)

BUFBITES
HECEEFHEEEE
WEELZEEHKE)
BERELE (FEE

[ﬂ]ﬂ

%’W%&f‘ﬁi(%f Z8g
EEZREKR)

EREENEEERSEN A FHRE0E26HE
ENERERBNEEANE] —H-

W B RN R RS
REREEENRENE] BT AR
A -

20BE2H[EF
ENEE

20183 / BB ZIRERAF

27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREABE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr.
Ko and Mr. Morris Ko respectively. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s
business development and daily management and operations
generally.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, the
Board at all times met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company with an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date subject to termination by
either party, giving at least three months’ notice in writing.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. The retiring Directors should be
eligible for re-election at the relevant AGM. In addition, any new
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of shareholders after his/her
appointment, whereas any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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EERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

The record of continuous professional development relating to
director’s duties and regulatory and business development that have
been received by the Directors from the Listing Date and up to date
of this report are summarized as follows:
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Director

2=

Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Ko Sin Yun = EN S A&
Mr. Ko Man Ho BB
Mr. Cheng Ka Wing ERRiE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BN TEF
Mr. To King Yan, Adam MRCEE
Mr. Kwok Chee Kin PEBLAE
Mr. Chan Kim Sun PR &R 24 50 A
Note:

Types of Training

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and
relevant publications
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EERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
Shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set
out under “Corporate Information” on page 3.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Sun (Chairman), Mr. To King Yan,
Adam and Mr. Kwok Chee Kin.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are, among others, to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor, review the financial information, oversee the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems and
audit process, and perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, the
Audit Committee held three meetings to review the first quarterly,
half-yearly and third quarterly financial results and reports and
significant issues on the financial reporting, operational and
compliance controls.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor once without the
presence of the executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. To King Yan, Adam (Chairman), Mr.
Chan Kim Sun and Mr. Kwok Chee Kin.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the
Group, reviewing performance-based remuneration, and ensuring
none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2018 to review the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company and the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management and other related matters.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are
set out in note 11 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director,
namely Mr. Ko Sin Yun (Chairman), and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. To King Yan, Adam and Mr. Chan
Kim Sun.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal
duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, and selecting or making
recommendations on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
board diversity as set out in the Company’s board diversity policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2018 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee considered an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, the
Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Required Standard and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Regular board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors. As the Company
was listed on 4 May 2018, only three regular board meetings were
held and no AGM was held during the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2018.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS (Continued)

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018 is set out in
the table below:

ESNZEEENEHERZ®)

RETMBEEZE2018F 12 A31 HER - KFFHH
REEGNEELEeTRURETRTBRRERAS
KBRS N TR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

B/ gEnE

Annual Other

Audit Remuneration Nomination committee General

Name of Director Board committee committee  committee meeting Meeting

] Exg #EnzZEg ¥HMZEE REZEE RREFAE HURRAE

Mr. Ko Sin Yun SHNEE 3/3 N/A N/A 11 N/A il
TER TER TER

Mr. Ko Man Ho BXRAE 3/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A 01
NEH NEH NEH ik

Mr. Cheng Ka Wing BRRLE 3/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A il
NEA NEH NEA A

Mr. To King Yan, Adam MBI &L 3/3 3/3 11 1/1 N/A 1/1
ik

Mr. Kwok Chee Kin DEBRE 3/3 3/3 11 N/A N/A 11
NiEA ik

Mr. Chan Kim Sun BRI 58 3/3 3/3 11 11 N/A 1/1
ik

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held one
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of executive Directors during the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2018.

Independent non-executive Directors have attended the extraordinary

general meeting held on 15 October 2018 to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the view of shareholders.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted a series of internal control
policies, procedures and programs designed to provide reasonable
assurance for achieving objectives including effective and efficient
operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

The ultimate goal of the Company’s risk management process is to
identify and focus on the issues in its business operations that create
impediments to the Company’s success. The risk management
process starts with identifying the major risks associated with the
corporate strategy, goals and objectives. The key process points in
the risk management include:

e |dentify: The Company identifies current and emerging risks in
its business operations and categorises those risks
into a reasonable profile based on timeframe,
likelihood, intensity and impact severity. The Company
establishes four risk categories, including strategic
risks, financial risks, operating risks and legal risks.

e Assess: The Company assesses and prioritises risks so that
the most important risks can be identified and dealt
with. Based on both qualitative and quantitative
analyses, the Company prioritises risks in terms of
likelihood and impact severity.

e Mitigate: Based on the assessment of (i) the probability and
impact severity of the risks and (i) cost and benefit of
the mitigation plans, the Company chooses the
appropriate option for dealing with risks, including risk
elimination by suspending the associated business
activities, risk reduction by adopting appropriate
control measures, risk transfer by outsourcing or
purchasing insurance policies, and risk acceptance by
choosing to accept risks of low priority.

e Measure: The Company measures its risk management by
determining if changes have been implemented and if
changes are effective. In the event of any weakness in
control, the Company follows up by adjusting its risk
management measures and reporting material issues
to the Directors.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

All divisions conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,
regulatory compliance and information security.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans,
and monitor the risk management progress, and reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the
systems.

The management has reported to the Board and the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has engaged external professional firm for providing
the internal audit function and performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. The internal audit function examined key issues in
relation to the accounting practices and all material controls and
provided its findings and recommendations for improvement to the
Audit Committee. An assessment on our internal control systems has
been examined by the external professional firm.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of
the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 66 to 71 of this annual
report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to HK$0.9 million and HK$3.3 million respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

B &
HE2018F 12 A1 ALLFE - BEFT R LIE
BT RIBARNARINDZEMES s FAER T
AT R0 4T X 4 8 B © 9 B A900,0007% T K&
3,300,000/8 7T °

HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE » BFTARS K IE
B RBEEAQABINIDZEMNEY  BHERTS
SHERIT BN E AT E ST

Fees Paid/

Service Category Payable
RIS EE R B ENEA
HK$ million

BAEAT

Audit Services EETIRTS 0.9
Non-audit Services FEEFT RIS 3.3
4.2

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ngai Kit Fong of Tricor Services Limited, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as the company
secretary. Ms. Ngai’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr.
Cheng, executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
Ms. Ngai also confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various
communication channels and a shareholders’ communication policy
is in place to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

According to article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to article 85 of the Articles, the Shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by the
Shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person for election
and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/her
willingness to be elected. These notices should be lodged at the
Company’s head office or the office of the Company’s branch share
registrar. The period for lodgement of such notices shall commence
on the day after the despatch of the notice of such general meeting
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 3/F, China United Plaza, 1002-1008 Tai Nan West
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

Email: contactus@vision-garments.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, the
Company has not made any changes to its Articles. An up to date
version of the Company’s Articles is also available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a shareholders’ commmunication policy to
ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends
pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code that has become
effective from 1 January 2019.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Preparation basis and scope

Vision International Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries, hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) is pleased to
present our first Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”) to provide an overview of the Group’s management
of significant issues affecting the operation, including environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) issues.

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 20 of The GEM
Listing Rules — “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) and summarises the ESG
performance of the Group. The Group has complied with the
disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain” provisions set out
in the ESG Reporting Guide. In view of our first time disclosure of
certain key performance indicator (“KPIs”), which is considered as
material, the Group will continue to optimize and improve the
disclosure of KPlIs.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
Group’s ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems are in place.

This Report illustrates the Group’s policies and performance regarding
the environmental and social aspects during the reporting Period from
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”).

The information contained herein is sourced from official documents
and statistics of the Group, as well as the combined control,
management and operations information provided by the subsidiaries
in accordance with the Group’s relevant policies. The ESG Report is
prepared and published in both English and Chinese. In the event of
contradiction or inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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B HERERERS

INTRODUCTION

The Group is an apparel SCM services provider based in Hong Kong,
delivering one-stop solution to customers in Europe, predominantly
Germany. The Group will continue in assessing the impacts of its
business on the major environmental, social and governance aspects
and to include in the ESG report.

The Group recognises the importance of sustainable development.
Sustainability is crucial for the Group’s growth in order to achieve
business excellence and enhance long-term competitiveness. The
Group has established and implemented various policies to manage
and monitor the risks related to environment, employment, operating
practices and community. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in this
Report.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group opens up communication with its stakeholders, including
government, shareholder, investors, employees and consumers,
through utilizing different channels as listed the table below. Through
the stakeholders engagement, the Group understands the
expectations and concerns of stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained
through these channels allow the Group to further formulate the
sustainable development strategy.

]
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Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
F0E ML BHRE #it
Government — Tocomply withthelaws —  On-site inspectionsand —  Operated, managed and
—  Proper tax payment checks paid taxes according to
—  Promote regional —  Research and discussion laws and regulations
economic development through work —  Strengthened safety
and employment conferences, work management
reports preparation and  —  Accepted the
submission for approval Government’s supervision,
— Annual reports inspection and evaluation
—  Website — Actively undertook social
responsibilities
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—  HENhERAHERKIME o REITERERRERE—  MRLE2ER
HEofE — BEXBNEE - s R
- % - ERETHgEMR
— 4k

20183 / BB ZIRERAF

43



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRSE

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Stakeholder
B0E

Shareholders and
Investors

BREIEEH

Expectation

e

Low risk

Return on the investment
Information disclosure
and transparency
Protection of interests
and fair treatment of
shareholders

ERS
BAE

AR AR
RS R AT Y ERR
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Engagement channel

SHRRE

— Annual general meeting
and other shareholders’
meetings

— Annual reports, circulars
and announcements

—  Newsletters

—  Meeting with investors
and analysts

— BRRBFARENEM
REREH

— FiR - BEHEAE

— ¥ER

— HEREERSTEEE

BFHhESHEE

Measures

oy

Issued notices of general
meetings and proposed
resolutions according to
laws and regulations
Disclosed company’s
information by publishing
announcements/circulars
and periodic reports during
the year
Carried out different forms
of investor activities with
an aim to improve
investors’ recognition
Held results briefing once
Disclosed company
contact details on website
and in reports and ensured
all communication
channels are available and
effective.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Stakeholder
B0E

Employees

7l
il

Customers

Expectation

Safeguard the rights and
interests of employees
Working environment
Career Development
opportunities
Self-actualization

Health and safety

R R BN Mg
TYERE
BRERKE
BRER
BERZE

Safe and high-quality
products

Stable relationship
Information transparency
Integrity

Business ethics

REREEEM
TR E R A
BREERE
R

B RER

BFHESHEE

Engagement channel

SHRRE

Conference

Training, seminars, briefing
sessions

Cultural and sport activities
Newsletters

Intranet and emails

g

B e - e
XL REERED
¥E R

ARSI LR

i3
i3

Website, brochures,
annual reports
Email and customer
service hotline
Feedback forms
Regular meetings

Ak - M FHR
EBREPIRE LR
BRRM

EHeE

Measures

Provided a healthy and
safe working environment
Developed a fair
mechanism for promotion
Established labor unions at
all levels to provide
communication platforms
for employees

Cared for employees by
helping those in need
Organizing employee
activities
RERELRLZZHITERE
B A TEIE TS

R EBRLIE REBRIE
BONEETENES
HEEE R

Strengthened quality
management to ensure
stable production and
smooth transportation
Entered into long-term
strategic cooperation
agreements
maEEERURREBTELE
BN B E

RIS REABR & 1Rk
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R HERERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Emission

Given the nature of the operations, the Group poses less negative
impact to the environment than most traditional industries. The Group
is not aware of any material environmental liability risk or compliance
costs. However, the Group is committed to continuously improving
our business environmental sustainability. In striving to do the right
things as a company, the Group recognises that it has a responsibility
to reduce the impact of the operations and be accountable for the
resources and materials it uses each day.

The Group’s businesses are mostly carried out locally in office. The
Group has encompassed the general approach towards controlling
environmental impacts of office activities. The Group’s most
significant environmental impacts are greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions from electricity consumption, such as from the air-
conditioning system, the lighting system, computers, printers and
other office equipment. The Group does not engage in any discharge
of waste into water and land, and there was no significant generation
of hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes. In line with the aim
to minimise emissions, the Group has implemented energy saving
practices which are mentioned in the session of “Use of Resources”
to reduce the GHG emissions.

The GHG emission during the Reporting Period is as follow:

Table 1 GHG Emission

REEM

HEm )

HREBHEE  AEBYRENEAZEIRN
REBDEHITE - AEEL P ABEFRERRE
BERBKARKA o R NEBEBHRTEH
RAEBHREAIFHEL - (ER—MBRF EX
NEHERZ 8 AEERREEGETRIE
LEELNFETHEBHMANERIMHAR -

REBBEBRI DR AR RELETT o A&
B O BRER— AR 7 S AR EE R A VA B IR A
Mg AEESEIENREFETRAENM
PRRERGE(DRERRE ) - kA =R AL -
PREAZAE - B ITEI R E M Ak - A%
B3 S A K N BT RE Y - TREEAARE
MEERRMEEZTERY - REARFERSR
AEBECER[ERER] — &R A mE 45
IRIETE AR R = RAEHEIN -

=

RBEHANRERBHRNT

®1BEREBHER

Equivalent CO:

Scope emission (kg)
“EtIEEHEKR

Eil (F3)

Scope 1 S 1 Nil £

Scope 2 &2 6,696

Total Est 6,696

77.5 kg/m?

Intensity mE Fr/FHAK

Note: KtaF

The calculation of GHG is based on the “Corporate Accounting and Reporting JRERENRIBEEREREZTEPHN X TR

Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol. MERE|FEEH -

Scope 1: Direct emission from vehicle that owned by the Group i1 : REASEESEMMNEZER

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity ~ #3052 :  ZEEFEAINEE I FTEENRZEK

consumed by the Group
Scope 3: Other indirect emission is optional disclosure that the — #E3: FEAREBATIEHIMEMEEFRZEFEE

corresponding emission is not controlled by the Group
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B HERERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Use of Resources

The Group places high priority on the efficient use of resources. The
major resources used by the Group are electricity, water and paper.
Due to our business nature, no packaging material is used. The
Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources, such
as minimising waste/emissions and implementing effective recycling
program. Practical measures are implemented as follows:

Electricity

Electricity saving measures are encouraged. Electrical appliances are
required to be set as energy saving mode where possible. For
computers, the automatic sleep mode is scheduled to be 20 minutes
or less. The room temperature should be set at a range from 20°C to
26°C. Also, power supply should be switched off when they are not in
use. Preference will be given to office equipment with relatively high
energy efficiency.

The energy consumption during the Reporting Period is as follows:

REEHE®

BREEA
AEESEERANERALRE AEEFERNE
BERAEN  KREE - ERRMOEREMY
% BT EER AR AEES HiE
AEARAGENNA: DINBRERLEE
W, B R BT 2 B R B B o AR
IS B EMT o

Eh

RIS ERRE R ENTEE - REEREA
BIRAE R - BRI 20 75BN B By ABERR
B - ERRAEERENBR20EERK206E
2 o AN - B E R R RE - AR
BEE AR AR = M AR o

REEHANREREEEMNT

Table 2 Energy Consumption R2BEFEFEE
Consumption
Energy (kWh)
HEE
BB (FRE)
Electricity BN 12,400
Energy Intensity BEREE 143.52 KWh/m?
TERE, Ik
Water Ak

The impact of freshwater use is relatively insignificant for the Group as
its businesses are services-focused. The Group did not encounter
any problems in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. Water rate
charges do not form a separate item in the rent, yet the Group
encourages staff to reduce water wastage, such as, by not running
water taps while cleaning in the pantry.

AEEEERBEEHRE - RHRIERNT
YK - NEEERIUE AR L EEE
EAIRRE - KEW AP —EBLIEE B
AEETEE TRRERK - fIIMEZIKREF
BN —BEFTHIKEESE
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R HERERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

Paper

Reduction in paper use indirectly reduces the overall GHG emission.
The Group has been taking various steps to reduce paper
consumption such as to reduce the use of paper by printing or
photocopying on both sides of paper, where applicable and to
encourage the employees to use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to
minimise pages, if possible. Besides, electronic media is
recommended for circulation/communication, to minimise using
paper.

During the Reporting Period, the paper consumption was 30 kg.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed/generated no
significant hazardous waste, non-hazardous waste, water and
packaging materials due to its business nature. The Group is not
aware of any material violation in all applicable environmental laws
and regulations.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group raises staff’'s awareness on environmental issues through
education and training and enlist employees’ support in improving the
Group’s performance, promote environmental awareness amongst
the customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in sections
“Emission” and “Use of Resource”, the Group strives to minimise the
impacts to the environment and natural resources.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment

We consider our employees to be our valuable assets and therefore
attach great importance to our recruitment. We recruit employees
possessing necessary skills and creative talents to help execute and
achieve our business strategies and objectives. The Group assesses
the available human resources on a continuous basis and will
determine whether additional personnel are required to cope with the
business development of the Group. The Group’s staff policy book
sets out our standards for compensation and dismissal, promotion,
working hours, rest periods and other benefits and welfare.
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B HERERERS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

The Group entered into separate labour contracts with each of our
employees in accordance with the applicable labour laws of Hong
Kong. We have set up a competitive remuneration system that links a
portion of our employees’ compensation to the performance of our
business in order to provide incentives to our employees to strive for
better results. Our remuneration package includes basic salary,
bonuses and allowances. We place great emphasis on employee
performance in determining their remuneration. We review the
performance of our employees regularly, and the review outcome is
used for the employee’s salary review and promotion appraisal.

We also maintain employees’ compensation insurance for all of our
employees as required under the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance and other applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong.
We operate defined contribution retirement benefits schemes under
MPF schemes registered under the relevant laws and regulations for
our employees in Hong Kong. Contributions to such schemes are
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

During the Reporting Period, no material non-compliance regarding
employment has been brought against the Group or its employees.

Health and Safety

As we do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities, we are not
subject to any manufacturing-related occupational health, work safety
and environmental issues. As required under Hong Kong laws, we
take out employees’ compensation insurance for our employees.

During the Reporting Period, no non-compliance cases were noted in
relation to laws and regulations for health and safety.

Development and Training

We believe that on-going development and training of our employees
is critical to our success. We are committed to employee
development and provide various training to our employees to
support their further development through education allowance to
reimburse fees of external training seminars as stated in the staff
policy book. We believe it is a win-win approach for achieving both
employee and corporate goals as a whole.
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R HERERERS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Labour Standards

The Group is fully aware that child labour and forced labour violate
fundamental human rights and also pose threat to sustainable social
and economic development. The Group strictly complies with the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
other relevant labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong. The Group
prohibits the use of child labour and forced labour. Employment
contracts and other records, documenting all relevant details of the
employees (including age) are maintained properly for verification by
relevant statutory body upon request.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with policies
and relevant laws and regulations regarding prevention of child labour
or forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

To focus our time and resources on provision of apparel SCM
services, we outsource the manufacturing of all apparel products
ordered by our customers to our suppliers in the PRC, Madagascar
and Cambodia.

Our sales and sourcing team is responsible for the overall production
management including selecting and engaging suppliers for
manufacturing of apparel products. We have adopted and
implemented policies and procedures in selecting new suppliers for
manufacturing of apparel products and monitoring their ongoing
performance. We regularly select and evaluate our suppliers, based
on a number of factors including technical capability, manufacturing
capacity, quality, reputation, timely delivery, pricing, costs and
payment terms. Besides, to determine whether to allocate production
orders to suppliers in the PRC, Madagascar or Cambodia, we
typically take into consideration of their prices, technical capabilities,
production capacities, delivery schedules and their respective
competitive strengths. Suppliers in different countries and different
regions of the PRC have their own competitive strengths. For
example, suppliers in the southern region of the PRC are equipped
with advanced manufacturing equipment and are capable to
manufacture a wide variety of apparel products. Suppliers in the
central and northern regions of the PRC are in close proximity to raw
material supply and thereby are able to manufacture apparel products
at lower costs. For our suppliers in Madagascar and Cambodia, the
costs of manufacturing apparel products are more competitive due to
the lower labour costs in Madagascar and Cambodia, and the
exemption of import duty for exporting apparel products from
Madagascar and Cambodia to Europe.
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B HERERERS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

We further evaluate such suppliers’ performance through our
inspections on apparel products. We follow up closely with our
suppliers on production and delivery schedules in order to ensure that
the finished products can be delivered in accordance with our
customers’ requirements.

Thus, we believe there are no significant environmental and social
risks for our management decision on supply chain management.

Product Responsibility

Quality assurance

We maintain a quality control programme for the apparel products
throughout the production process manufactured by our suppliers,
with the view to ensuring the overall quality of the apparel products.
Our quality control manager, who has over 25 years of experience in
the field of quality control for apparel production, had been in charge
of the quality control aspects of our operations. Our quality control
team performs on-site inspections on the raw materials to be used on
the apparel products and semi-finished products to ensure they meet
the relevant specifications. In addition, our quality control team
inspects and performs laboratory tests on the raw materials in
accordance with the local and international standards, where
necessary. Our quality control team reviews such test results and
decides whether the raw materials meet our quality requirements.

We carry out inspections on the apparel products ordered by our
customers during the production process using different inspection
methods. Before the packaging and delivery of finished products to
customers, we perform on-site quality inspections to ensure that all
finished products comply strictly with customers’ requirements and
our internal standards. If any defect is found in the finished products,
we require the suppliers to rectify the defects at no additional cost
and subsequently re-examine the reprocessed products. After
passing the final inspection, all finished products are packed for
delivery.

For our quality control measure over selection of suppliers, please
refer to aspect “Supply Chain Management” in this Report for further
details.

HEER @)

HEEEIE ()

BB BRBIREE S — ST RS R
30 o B PV EL R 7w ) BRI AR B R A B
* o UBRERREEEFERTURN -

Bt - AR ERMEEEEHERE R HEA
EHAREL EE R BRORFE R FER o

EmAE

HERE
BPSHERNBERKEREEBEREEE
ZHITERE  KMERREERNBEESE - 3H
MEERGKE(REREEENEERGTH
BRBBFER) BERMEBHNEEES -
1P By B8 22 422 ) I o ¥l 2 2 v e AR e S 452
B EMFHETTE i inER - ARERIR RS A 1H R
FRAE o AN - PR EBAH R BRRIRE - B R
FETRBREERIA(MBERTE) - HFNEE
EHERESAMAAGR  WRERMBES
HamfmEEEK -

BAREERFTNBIRNBRETE @R
PEPIIBHREKER - ERERINEKAT
BEFE A BAEETEREERA - ARRA
BHEBEERETEPNELERMNAEIR
% o IR IRBM R A TR - HAE2RMHR
P BRI AR T T B UEREE - NREH
BEREREER BRBRKRRREK  MARKS

>

BETRRREE -

FRHMERERER T ANEEEFEENE
ZHE F2HARE [HEREE] Em -

201843 / BB ZRER AT 51



52

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERERERS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Product return policy

The apparel products ordered by our customers are subject to final
inspections before delivery to ensure they conform with our
specifications and quality requirements. We do not have a product
return policy. However, we may return products due to quality issues
or require our suppliers to rectify any defects our customers identified
after delivery of the products. In the event that issues relating to
product return arises, we follow up closely with our customers on any
claims or requests for product return, payment refund, rectification or
price discount, and may enter into negotiations with our customers to
resolve the issue on a case by case basis.

Data protection

Employees are generally required to follow the confidentiality clause
as stated in the staff policy book and employment contract,
requesting employees not to disclose any trade secret or other
confidential information concerning the business or affairs of our
Group except for benefit of the Group with further authorisation.

During the Reporting Period, there were no cases of non-compliance
against products and services related laws and regulations.

Anti-Corruption

To ensure operation efficiency and employees’ development in a fair
and honest working environment, the Group has formulated
whistleblowing policy to avoid suspected corruption and provided
channel such as by letters, meetings, emails or phone calls for
employees to report suspected corruption. If there are any suspected
case related to corruption, employees are encouraged to report the
related cases through the mentioned channels. All these practical
actions not only win the trust of customers, but also enhance the
sense of belonging and fair play among our employees.

The Group has been in strict compliance with laws and regulations
related to anti-corruption. During the Reporting Period, no legal cases
regarding corrupt practices were brought against the Group or its
employees.

Community Investment
As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understand the needs of the communities in which we operate. The
Group strives to develop long-term relationship with our stakeholders
and seek to make contributions to have a positive impact on
community development.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

The Directors are pleased to present the first annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The principal
activities of the Group are trading of apparel products with the
provision of SCM services to customers.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group during the year under review.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 72 of this annual report.

The Board has declared interim dividends with an aggregate amount
of HK$6.5 million (2017: HK$4.3 million) to its then sole shareholder
in April 2018 which had been fully settled. The Board has also
declared a third quarter dividend of HK$0.01 per Share, amounting to
a total of HK$10 million (corresponding period in 2017: Nil) which was
paid on 18 December 2018.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.013 per Share amounting to a total of HK$13 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil) to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 10
May 2019. The proposed final dividend, subject to the approval by
the Shareholders at the AGM to be held on 3 May 2019, will be paid
on or about 23 May 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 of the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2018 has been conducted and the key factors affecting its
results and financial position are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. A fair
review of, and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group are summarized as
follow:

(@  Reliance upon limited number of major customers

(b)  Failure to respond to changes in fashion trends and preferences
of our customers and end consumers

(c) Reliance on supplies for the manufacturing of apparel products
(d) Increase in the costs of raw materials or labour

(e)  Any other principal risks involved in the Group

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 4 financial years is set out at pages 152.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital and movements during the
year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rate basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2018.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves on the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 75 and note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$33.9 million (2017: HK$37.9
million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s largest and
five largest customers’ aggregate amount represented approximately
28.1% (2017: approximately 39.2%) and 77.1% (2017: approximately
87.8%) of the Group’s total revenue respectively.

During the year under review, the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers’ aggregate amount represented approximately 31.8%
(2017: approximately 32.6%) and 77.8% (2017: approximately
82.2%) of the Group’s total purchase cost respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors nor any
of their close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) nor any
shareholders who or which own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers and/or suppliers during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ko Sin Yun (Chairman)
Mr. Ko Man Ho

(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Ka Wing

(appointed on 19 January 2017)
(appointed on 8 July 2017)

(appointed on 8 July 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. To King Yan, Adam (appointed on 16 April 2018)
Mr. Kwok Chee Kin (appointed on 16 April 2018)
Mr. Chan Kim Sun (appointed on 16 April 2018)

Pursuant to article 84 of the Article, at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, all the Directors
including Mr. Ko Sin Yun, Mr. Ko Man Ho, Mr. Cheng Ka Wing, Mr.
To King Yan, Adam, Mr. Kwok Chee Kin and Mr. Chan Kim Sun shall
retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out pages 20 to 25 of this annual report.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date and will continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company with an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date, subject to termination by
either party by giving at least three months’ notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has proposed or
entered into any service agreement or appointment letter with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors regarding his independence in accordance with
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers each of them being
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Under the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, cost, charges, losses, damages and expenses
incurred or sustained by him as a Director provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
attached to him. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against the Directors.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee will review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, and time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 11 of
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report, neither Director nor a connected entity of a
Director had any material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to the business
of the Group, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year ended 31 December 2018.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Giraffe Capital Limited to be the compliance
adviser. As at 31 December 2018, as notified by Giraffe Capital
Limited, except for the compliance adviser agreement entered into
between the Company and Giraffe Capital Limited dated 3 August
2017, neither Giraffe Capital Limited nor any of its directors or
employees or close associates, had or may have, any interest in the
securities of the Company or any member of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities which is required to
be notified to the Group pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing
Rules as at 31 December 2018.

COMPETING INTEREST

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or
any of their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules), engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or had any other conflict of interest with
the Group. A deed of non-competition dated 16 April 2018 was
entered into by the controlling shareholders in favour of the Company
(for itself and as a trustee for its subsidiaries) (the “Deed”), details of
which were set out in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholder” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from the
controlling Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed throughout the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2018. The independent non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed by the controlling
Shareholders and confirmed that the controlling Shareholders have
not been in breach of the Deed from the Listing Date to 31 December
2018.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Required Standard regarding

Directors’ securities transactions. Having been enquired by the
Company, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Required Standard from the Listing Date to the date of this report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Company’s then sole shareholder on 16 April 2018 for the primary
purpose of providing eligible participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company and to motivate, attract and retain the
eligible participants whose contributions are important to the long-
term growth and profitability of the Group. Eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme include any employee, adviser, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture partner of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including any director of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time
employment with or otherwise engaged by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries at the time when an option is granted. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on the Listing Date and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years commencing
on the Listing Date. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
were summarised in the paragraph headed “Statutory and General
Information — D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus. No share option was granted, lapsed, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption and there was no outstanding share option as at the date of
this report.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the sub-sections headed “Interests and Short
Positions of Directors and Chief Executive in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporation” and “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2018 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the
Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age)
to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the Securities and Future
Ordinance (“SFO”) or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND
COMPLIANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Board and the
management of the Company are committed to maintaining and
achieving a high standard of corporate governance practices with an
emphasis on a quality Board, an effective accountability system and a
healthy corporate culture in order to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and enhance the business growth of
the Group. Where applicable, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code since the Listing Date up
to the date of this report.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
26 to 41 of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out in this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year under review.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group aims to protect the environment by minimising adverse
impacts of daily operations to environment, such as energy and
recycling of office resources. The Group will continue to seek better
environmental practices and promote the correct environmental
attitudes and values within the organization. The Group has complied
with all relevant laws, rules and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and employment.

Details of the environmental policy are set out in the ESG Report on
pages 42 to 52 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Group were entered into or existed during the year under
review.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, there was a sufficient
prescribed public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange: (a)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any
interests and short positions in which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein (the
“Register”); or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares

Name of Director Nature of interest and capacity

EERRESTHRAERADARE
B EENRG - ARG RE
BENESERAR

MR2018F 12 A1 H - EEEH AR B HF=ITH
ABRARASEMAEEEZE (EEREFSH L
EIEBIZEXVES) iR (n - MR D R EEEH 6
mRKREF  BEEQREBEELFRBAEKIE
HET7R8DEMAME RN T RE AT E R
RE(BEREREES RAEKIIGHIEX
WEEREREENEMEELXE) D) IR
B H L EE G5 352 (KB E R Z IKFT il &
(TR ERRAE o) RIEE/EE
HETHEHF X HHGEM LR AIE5.46 (5B A
EARRNAI RS AR AT

u

XS R
¢ e B

3

RV B
Percentage
Number of of issued
Shares held share capital

EEHA EEMERSH FrERnEE HERTRAEI
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(Htat1) (K17£3)

Mr. Ko Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 750,000,000 (L) 75%

REE REESEENER (HaE2) 750,000,000 (L) 75%

Notes: Kt -

1. The letter “L” denotes to the long position in the Shares. 1. FE (L] RTRBRO PR -

2. The Shares are registered in the name of Metro Vanguard Limited 2. % % % £ bAMetro Vanguard Limited (“Metro

(“Metro Vanguard”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, the issued share capital of which is wholly owned by Mr. Ko.
Accordingly, Mr. Ko is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Metro Vanguard for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

3. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the
Company’s total number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2018 (i.e.
1,000,000,000 Shares).
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Long Position in the Shares of Associated
Corporation

BEERBETHAEREQATHME
MEBEENRG  HERORE
EENEZERAE@®

RARBEZE D R 4 R

Number and Percentage

Name of Capacity/ class of of issued

Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interest securities share capital

5L HECEEE R B3 EntE BHEHERER MERITREESL

Mr. Ko Metro Vanguard Beneficial owner 100 100%
Ordinary shares

=L Metro Vanguard BEHEEA 100 & 8 Pk 100%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be entered in the Register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interest and short positions of the
persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

FERRREMALRRG REHE
R R NR R

MR2018F 12 A1 H - REZH AR A H=ITH
ABHN - AT AT TEARR BB R ABBIAR 1D P #E
ERBEBHFREEBEAEXNBE2REIDIIE
SBME AR A KA ATk B R AR IR R K A
EI&PI5E 336 AN RIATFERNECMAOER R
KRBT -

Long Position in the Shares R EVEF B
Percentage
Number of of Issued
Name Nature of interest and capacity Shares held share capital
BB HE ERtERSH HEBT
RGO #E RABDLE
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(HtaE1) (KtaE3)
Metro Vanguard Beneficial owner 750,000,000 (L) 75%

Metro Vanguard BE=EABA

Ms. Chan Sau Fung Interest of spouse (Note 2) 750,000,000 (L) 75%

BRFEB 2t fliBtes (Mt 2)
Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes to the long position in the Shares.

2. Ms. Chan Sau Fung is the spouse of Mr. Ko. By virtue of the SFO, she
is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by Metro Vanguard in
which Mr. Ko is deemed to be interested.

3. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the
Company’s total number of issued shares as at 31 December 2018 (i.e.
1,000,000,000 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the
Company, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 comply with applicable reporting standards, GEM
Listing Rules, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for appointment.

The Company has not changed its external auditor during the year
ended 31 December 2018 up to the date of this annual report. A

resolution for their re-appointment as the auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Ko Sin Yun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EED R &

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vision
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 151,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B R HE R E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BARELER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RiEETEHEATSNEEHE D Bt ANHR
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 4G AHMEHERTREEHNEIE - EEN B EE
financial statements of the current period. These matters were GAFBBRERREITEKE RFRIFZEEIE -
addressed in the content of our audit of the consolidated financial EBE&EZ TS FEEBEKRER -
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BEENEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEHETTREFARETEEANG A

Revenue Recognition

Wz R

We identified revenue recognition, regarding whether sales
transaction have occurred as a key audit matter due to its
significance to the consolidated financial statements. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from sales of
apparel products with provision of supply chain management
amounted to HK$111,862,000.
EEBRRBR(FHREERSAREL) B RERETE
B FRREHRAVBHMERNERE - 822018412 A 31
HILFE  RERHEHEZEEERBAEEREERHEEHK
5 /4111,862,000%8 7T °

Revenue from the sales of apparel products with the
provision of supply chain management services is recognised
when the customer obtains the control of the apparel
products, being when the apparel products are delivered to
the customers at the designated location and the titles are
passed to the customers. The accounting policy for revenue
recognition is disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

REREHEREERBAEEREERHEENKENE,E
FIREEmAEHIER - MIEREEMNEEHHINTER
BEEREREEFPE TIUHER « W ERO &t BORBER
fFE B TEIRARMFES -

Our procedures in relation to assessing the occurrence of
sales of apparel products with the provision of supply
chain management services included:

HPIARR R R BT RREPE S REEmIHE
iZF B

° Obtaining an understanding of the revenue business
process and revenue recognition policy;
T AR RSB AE R R FERR IR

° Reviewing contract terms, on a sample basis, to
evaluate whether the Group’s accounting policy is in
compliance with the relevant accounting standard;
MERER S OG- S ERENSFTBREST
HAEFHERET

° Testing the key controls over revenue recognition
which addressing the occurrence, accuracy and
timing of the revenue recognition; and
BRI FERE T BIEHE - B INES R
R RS R

° Tracing recorded sales transactions, on a sample
basis, to the corresponding invoices, delivery
documents and settlement records.
MEREMERRIEER I EREEE - M R4
Haosx o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EED R &

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EED R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EED R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EED R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Faith Corazon Del Rosario.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEaRkAtEEKER

For the year ended
31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
2018 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hsr FHET FET
Revenue g 25 5 111,862 71,399
Cost of sales SHE R (80,002) (44,867)
Gross profit EA 31,860 26,532
Other income Hilg A 6 2,759 22,270
Other losses H b Es518 7 (127) (809)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEX (6,980) (6,068)
Administrative expenses THAX (7,788) (4,221)
Listing expenses EWAX (3,818) (12,115)
Finance costs BTSN 8 (153) (397)
Profit before taxation B A= A 15,753 25,192
Income tax expense i8R 9 (3,241) (2,727)
Profit for the year F R F) 10 12,512 22,465
Other comprehensive income Hap 2w
Itemn that will not be reclassified TR EH D EZBmrEE
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on WEBENEEEE R 25| S
the translation of functional currency fEH =R
to presentation currency - 878
Total comprehensive income FRAZHMKZHAEE
for the year 12,512 23,343
Earnings per share — BRERN —
basic (Hong Kong cents) B (P 13 1.37 3.00
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE MR R R

As at 31 December 2018

72018412 A31H

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ikz3 TExT FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MERE 14 30,004 506
Intangible assets B EE 15 8,583 9,583
Deposits EE=N 17 153 95
38,740 10,184
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Goods in transit TEEY 16 1,557 926
Trade receivables, prepayments and BSREWEIE - BN RIENRTER
deposits 17 26,687 13,595
Amount due from ultimate holding JEUR fx 432 % A B FIE
company 18 - 8
Tax recoverable AT EI TR 686 6,466
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 19 37,808 23,767
66,738 44,762
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N EH b e FoE 20 11,702 9,090
Contract liabilities AdBE 21 17 -
Bank borrowings IRITIER 22 10,904 6,800
Financial guarantee liability ISR BE 23 - 816
22,623 16,706
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFHR 44,115 28,056
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBER
LIABILITIES 82,855 38,240
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R &
As at 31 December 2018
© 2018412 A31H

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FHET FETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBERS
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIBEE 24 503 343
NET ASSETS BEFHE 82,352 37,897
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRHE
Share capital A& AN 25 10,000 1
Reserves & 72,352 37,896
82,352 37,897

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 151 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2019 and are

signed on its behalf by:

F2EE151BENEAMBEHRERE KN201943
F1sBESESRSETH TINEETREEE

Mr. Ko Sin Yun
EHEEN Sk
DIRECTOR

BE
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Mr. Ko Man Ho
EIRLE
DIRECTOR

BE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31 AILFE

Share Share Other  Translation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
RA& B ME RERME RERME RE R BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR FAT TAx TR
(Note 25) (Note)
(PiE25) (P3E)
As at 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1H = - (99,345) (8,130) 130,245 22,770
Profit for the year ENEH - - - - 22,465 22,465
Exchange differences arising K E#HEHEEEEE 27
on the translation of EEMETER
functional currency to
presentation currency - - - 878 - 878
Total comprehensive income X2 B £58
for the year - - - 878 22,465 23,343
Dividends (note 12) B8 (fFE12) - - - - (4,300) (4,300)
Deemed distribution arising from 3 & [ 2 A &1 % 1 B i
issue of financial guarantee to  ERME(ED TR
related companies - - (3,916) - - (3,916)
Effect of group reorganisation  £ESEEMTE 1 - (1) - - -
At 31 December 2017 RH2017%€12A31H 1 - (103,262) (7,252) 148,410 37,897
Profit and total comprehensive /%71 & 2 BLG A 2%
income for the year - - - - 12,512 12,512
Dividends (note 12) Bg (fFE12) - - - - (16,500) (16,500)
Capitalisation issue (note 25(\v)) & A& {347 (i 25(v)) 7,499 (7,499) - - - -
Issue of shares upon share R ZEmETRG
offer (note 25(v)) (BrsE25(v)) 2,500 53,750 - - - 56,250
Transaction cost directly BRI EREEL KR
attributable to issue of shares - (7,807) - - - (7,807)
At 31 December 2018 Rm2018F12A318 10,000 38,444 (103,262) (7,252) 144,422 82,352

* Amount less than HK$1,000

Note: The Group has provided financial guarantee to companies controlled by
Mr. Murray Ko and his spouse. Mr. Murray Ko is the brother of Mr. Ko,
the controlling shareholder of the Company (defined in note 1). Such
financial guarantee was measured at its fair value at initial recognition
based on the credit spread (including the assumption on probability of
default and recovery ratio) and the maximum exposure of the facility to
the Group at the time of recognising the financial guarantee liability. The
fair value of financial guarantee liability at initial recognition was
recognised in other reserve of equity as deemed distribution to the
shareholder, and the financial guarantee liability was measured at the
higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” (before application of HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instrument” (“HKFRS 9”))/the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018); and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policy. All
financial guarantee liability was releases upon the Listing (defined in
note 1). Details of the financial guarantees are set out in note 23.

*

©EAH1,0008 7T

b REBEEmSHNEE RERBESH QAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

For the year ended
31 December
BZE12AALEE

2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before taxation o 25 Al s ) 15,753 25192
Adjustments for: FOAT S IEEL A%
Interest income F B U (16) M
Net loss on structured foreign currency EEBINES RIS N EIEFE
forward contracts - 70
Depreciation of property, plant Y - RENERETE
and equipment 379 88
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 1,000 417
Financial guarantee income BRI (816) (21,548)
Finance costs BT AR AR 153 397
Operating cash flows before movements in &8 & ¢ EFFIK LR ERE
working capital 16,453 4,615
Increase in goods in transit TEEE i N (631) (478)
Increase in trade and other receivables, B 5 REMEWFIE - AR R
prepayments and deposits RE I (16,853) (6,873)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N H b e IEE 6,509 2,988
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD (177) -
Payment upon settlement of structured KA SBEINERAANEENNR
foreign currency forward contracts - (70)
Cash from operations KERTSHRS 5,301 182
Income tax refund (paid) BERERER (BEM) 2,699 (928)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETBHRE (A REFR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8,000 (746)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received BUF 8 16 1
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB ¥% - R LB E (29,877) (594)
Acquisition of trademark Wiz - (10,000)
Advance to ultimate holding company s S 2y UNCIE-EN - ®)
Repayment from ultimate holding company R B &4 IR A BIHE R 8 -
Repayment from controlling shareholder K E R R A IE K - 22,681
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING 2&;%8) (FrH) FiiS B &3 8
ACTIVITIES (29,853) 12,080
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

For the year ended
31 December
BZE12A1ALEE

2018 2017
2018 2017
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET

FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Interest paid BEAFLE (153) (397)
Dividends paid AR E (16,500) (4,300)
New bank borrowings raised HESEITER 22,750 42,966
Repayments of bank borrowings ERBBRITER (18,646) (49,144)
Repayment to a related company M — IR E R RIER - (3,261)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon PR B & 18 31T D FT 1S 2IB

share offer 56,250 -
Transaction cost directly attributable to BT AR EE R SR

issue of shares (7,807) -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) MEEBE (A RS TE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 35,894 (14,136)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASH BE&RRESZEWHMORD) BE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14,041 (2,802)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHORERAEEEY

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 23,767 25,691
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HINGEE PE RS B ) RL 22 - 878
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERAERAEEEY

AT END OF THE YEAR 37,808 23,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

1.

GENERAL AND GROUP REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General

Vision International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 19 January 2017 under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares were listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 4 May 2018 (the “Listing”). The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Metro Vanguard Limited (“Metro
Vanguard”), a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liability. The ultimate
controlling party of Metro Vanguard is Mr. Ko Sin Yun (“Mr. Ko”
or the “Controlling Shareholder”) who is also the executive
director of the Company. The addresses of the Company’s
registered office and principal place of business are 3/F, China
United Plaza, 1002-1008 Tai Nan West Street, Cheung Sha
Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are sales of apparel products
with the provision of supply chain management services to
customers mainly in Europe and Korea.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, due to the change
of the underlying transactions, events and conditions that are
relevant to the Group, the directors of the Company have
reconsidered and determined that the functional currency of the
Company should be changed from Euro (“EUR”) to United
States Dollars (“US$”) in order to better reflect the currency that
mainly influences the development of the business activities of
the Company. The change in the functional currency of the
Company was applied prospectively from the date of change in
accordance with HKAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rate”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

1.

GENERAL AND GROUP REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

General (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements is presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is different from the functional
currency of the Company. For the convenience of the financial
statements users, the directors of the Company consider that
presenting the consolidated financial statements in HK$ is
preferable as the Company’s shares are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange.

All values are rounded to the nearest thousands (HK$’000)
except when otherwise indicated.

Group reorganisation and basis of preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements

Vision Garments Limited (“Vision Garments”) was a wholly
owned operating subsidiary of Market Gala Limited (“Market
Gala”). Market Gala was directly held and controlled by Mr. Ko
Sin Yun (“Mr. Ko” or the “Controlling Shareholder”). To
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, the companies comprising the Group underwent a
series of reorganisation as described below:

On 28 November 2016, Metro Vanguard was
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability with an
authorised share capital of US$ 50,000 divided into
50,000 shares of US$1.00 each. On 19 December 2016,
Metro Vanguard allotted and issued 1 fully paid share to
Mr. Ko for cash at par value. On 29 December 2016, 99
fully paid shares of Metro Vanguard were further allotted
and issued to Mr. Ko at par value.

i. On 29 December 2016, Metro Vanguard acquired 1 share
of Market Gala (being the then entire issued share capital)
from Mr. Ko at a consideration of US$1.00.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

1.

GENERAL AND GROUP REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Group reorganisation and basis of preparation

and presentation of the consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

ii.  On 19 January 2017, the Company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with an authorised share capital of
US$50,000 divided into 50,000 shares of US$ 1.00 each.
On the same date, 1 fully paid share of the Company was
allotted and issued at par to the initial subscriber, an
independent third party, and transferred to Metro
Vanguard at a consideration of US$1.00.

iv. ~ On 15 February 2017, the Company acquired the 1 share
(being the then entire issued share capital) of Market Gala
from Metro Vanguard at a consideration of 99 new shares
of the Company to be issued to Metro Vanguard, all
credited as fully paid.

Pursuant to the reorganisation described above, the Company
became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group on 15 February 2017. Its immediate and
ultimate holding company is Metro Vanguard which is controlled
by Mr. Ko. The Company and its subsidiaries have been under
the common control of Mr. Ko or since their respective dates of
incorporation, where there is a shorter period. The Group
resulting from the Group reorganisation, which involves
interspersing the Company and Metro Vanguard between
Market Gala and Mr. Ko, is regarded as a continuing entity.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements has been
prepared on the basis as if the Company has always been the
holding company of the Group.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017 include the results,
changes in equity and cash flows of the companies now
comprising the Group as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout the year ended 31 December
2017, taking into account the respective dates of incorporation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current
year:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 4 with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements to

Hong Kong HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
Accounting
Standards
(“HKAS”) 28

Amendments to

HKAS 40

Transfers of Investment Property

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the
first time applying the limited retrospective method with the
cumulative effect of initial application recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations with no material effect on timing and
amount of revenues recognised in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group recognises revenue from the sales of apparel
products with the provision of supply chain management
services to customers which arise from contracts with
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FEAEBUMEREEZERNOHGT
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ZR|I R IEETA (@)
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with BEAMBEWMELENEIGRF
Customers” (Continued) P& o)

Revenue is recognised when the customer obtains the control WHEN P ESIREERAIT SRR - B
of the apparel products, being when the apparel products are ERZEEMREECHEINTEFPAME
delivered to the customers at the designated location and the EEBER PR T AR -

titles are passed to the customers.

A5 BE E R P B B T R 2 S 15 S A
EEENECREHBENE—SERS
BIAMI 5 RIS RE -

Further information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in note 5 and note 3 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of DRERERMBRELEANEISENTE
HKFRS 15 Bt

The following adjustments were made to the amounts THAER2018F 1 A1 BRI & B 554K
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at MRTPERHDEMELOFE - FRE
1 January 2018. Line items that were not affected by the FFEMERWRIEEA -

changes have not been included.

Carrying amounts Carrying
previously amounts
reported at under HKFRS 15
31 December at 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
SERTR REEBEHERSE
20174 LA ER LA
12A31H 2018F1A1H
ZRMIREE ERiibak] M EREE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FAET FTET
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables ZHREMENTE 9,090 (194) 8,896
Contract liabilities EHBE - 194 194

As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of
HK$194,000 previously included in trade and other payables
were reclassified to contract liabilities accordingly. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
“Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the
related interpretations.

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying HKFRS
15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018 and its consolidated statement of
cash flows for the current year for each of the line items
affected. Line items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

EREBMBERELERNWHT
R RIEETA ()

BEWHREENEGH[F

FE#WEs

AREREBMBEREENFISHRNLE
Bt (48)
HRGEMBRIRZE

Carrying
amounts
without
application of

As reported Adjustment HKFRS 15
AEAER
R EZER
MR E F5l AE BE15HMNEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FiET
Current liabilities RBRE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNHRIE 11,702 17 11,719
Contracts liabilities BHBE 17 (17) -
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows YR A BRI
Carrying
amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustment HKFRS 15
RERER
B E %R
IR & A5l AR B155NEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Operating activities ReEED
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K E b & < ZIBIE A1 2,806 (177) 2,629
Decrease in contracts liabilities BHBEERD (177) 177 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial
assets and financial guarantee contracts and 3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January
2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information. Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

All financial assets and financial liabilities continue to be
measured on the same bases as were previously measured
under HKAS 39.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the Group’s existing financial assets for
impairment using reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9. The results of the assessment and
the impact thereof are detailed below.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables
and measures the lifetime ECL on each debtor individually
based on the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group and the
cashflows that the Group expects to receive, with the
consideration of forward looking information.

As at 1 January 2018, included in the trade receivables,
HK$6,520,000 are not past due and regarded as having low
default risk by the management of the Company based on
regular repayment history in the ECL assessment. The
remaining balance amounted to HK$2,171,000 are past due
and the management of the Company has assessed the ECL of
these balances by applying an average expected credit loss
rate with reference to the market available information for retail
industry. The management of the Group have assessed the
ECL of all trade receivables as insignificant and therefore it did
not result in an adjustment of opening retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised cost
mainly comprise of deposits and bank balances and cash, are
measured on 12-month ECL basis and there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. For
bank balances, the Group only transacts with reputable banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies and consider the risk of default as low and 12-month
ECL is insignificant.

For outstanding financial guarantees provided to related parties
as disclosed in note 23, the Group considers there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
hence the loss allowance is assessed on 12m ECL basis.

Based on the assessment by the management of the Company,
the ECL on other financial assets at amortised cost and financial
guarantee is insignificant and therefore it did not result in an
adjustment of opening retained profits.

Except as described above, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKFRSs

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments!

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The directors of the Company anticipates that the application of

these new and revised HKFRSs and interpretations will have no

material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements includes applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period (as explained in the accounting policies below). Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristic of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassess whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group as a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group as an agent).

The Group is a principal as it controls the specified good before
that good is transferred to a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (before application of
HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
in the normal course of business and net of discount.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured: when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if
the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

The change in functional currency of the Company was applied
prospectively from the date of change. All items were translated
into new functional currency at the exchange rate on that date.
The cumulative currency translation differences which had
arisen from the translation of foreign operations up to the date
of the change in functional currency were not reclassified from
equity to profit or loss until the disposal of the relevant
operations.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated cost of completion and
cost necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. All of the Group’s financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised costs.

98  VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

3.

BEESHEE®

R T B (R2018F1 A1 HE
RAEBVEREEANFINREZ)
(%)

ERNR LA ELREENCHABS
SRR A KRR IR 4 B LB A R LS,
B St BT R M0 77 0% © BRI % B R W1 IR B
REKCREENCREEREDFRNN
(M) B MR s R KBS WA R
2B (RIEER B FIE—B5MAE B
HEOWBARIEY - B R A% B
ST ) EREHTIR E AR B AR o

ERMEE
THEENIERERAE
A TR S RVE B E R IR SRR

i

e SREBEENRAGAKAZRMEEMN
WEBENRERENEBEASE
)52

e ANEFNEEAMELANRERE
BREBINEAERREERAZOHN

B o
o

FEEMEREERRLZATEMNE - K
SENMAEERMEERRIZBIHKIATE
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, deposits and bank balances) and
financial guarantee contracts. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables
and measures the lifetime ECL on each debtor individually
based on the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group under the
contract and the cashflows that the Group expects to receive,
with the consideration of forward looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default; (i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and (iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Also, the Group considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o Significant financial difficulty of the issuer of the borrower;
or

o A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
or

o The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

° It is becoming probably that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount
of income recognised over the guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount with the exception of trade receivables where the
correspondence adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables and deposits, amount due from
ultimate holding company and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment of financial assets could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the receivable
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and bank
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognised a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire or,
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liabilities derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially at its fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)/the
amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018); and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policy.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible, intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.

BEESHEE®
BRENEREERERE @

BRREREEN AR D 2R @55 -
fi EOE A ETE R AT B 258 - IR E
T EEMBReELBNNAIKESHE -
AT BRI DB & I8 — AL - AIRFE
ENDBEABYRSELEMIAR LT
ANEEAHNDESE -—HEENES
EEBLHNER -

AU [e] 5 B8 2 A SRR B A 24 R (B
EMEFHREE - FEEBEERS &
AARRRERESLRA RRIAK T Y
EEHHERARBRARBESREMFH
BE(IRLEEEMN) B EREO Y
MBIAEIRE - BRAIREHIRE -

st EE(REELELM) WA REE
BRINEREE MEE(IREELE
) K REESAREETRESHE - BE
BEEGARRBEER -

B EBENARED  EENREE
H B BREERE ST OS5
HENENREETSSNREBEFE
VEREEXREELFMERBERBE
i R FE EE E B RRTEN B < IR MBS 98 18 [ B B
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. A TREERRNEEZRR

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next twelve months.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
Group estimates the amount of loss allowance of accounts
receivables based on the credit risk and past due status of
accounts receivables. The loss allowance amount is measured
as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group under the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, with the
consideration of forward-looking information. The assessment
of credit risk of accounts receivables involves high degree of
estimation and uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment loss may
arise accordingly. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables is HK$18,866,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

Prior to the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, when
there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group would
estimate the future cash flows from the trade receivables. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables is HK$8,691,000. No impairment loss was charged
to profit or loss during year ended 31 December 2017.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue
For the year ended 31 December 2018

AT RERENEZRR @

B ) RWGRIEN L EHRE
201851 A1 B ER BBV B RS
FOWA - WARBBRBERLRAER
B AEBEBGEHE S ERFIBEHRKIR
CRE - BEFBCESREERTER
RZE A ERR B FE (BIOIRMERE
FTEMERAE) HEFRRREERE (T
BRERREENRREERBE) BITHRE
MIREME 2 ERNEZREER - WERAK
Bemne PRIER - Al e HIRERR
BB - R2017F 128318 ES5EIK
X B K BR E {E £8,601,0008 L #H &
201712 AB1 AL FE - EEFIRE
BBR BNk o

H&Zé& D ERE R

HZ2018F 1231 HILFE

Revenue from contracts with customers represents the fair REBEFPEANGSEAEERTFIRMH M
value of amounts received and receivable from the sales of EEEERBMELEREERHEENE K
apparel products with the provision of supply chain N EWGRIBR A FE -
management services to customers by the Group.
Timing of revenue recognition and category of revenue oz HESR I 31 K W 5748
2018
2018 &
HK$’000
FHT
Recognised at a point in time and Fi (] PR A B R A8 B & A0 FER
short-term contracts:
Sales of apparel products with the provision of &P HEEREE M MR HARE (L EdE
supply chain management services to customers B ARTS 111,862

The customers of the Group are mainly large department stores
in Europe. All of the Group’s sales of apparel products with the
provision of supply chain management services are provided
directly to the customers. Contracts with the Group’s
customers are fixed-price contracts.

AEENETEFREMNOAREBERR - K
SEMERAHNEREERBOREER
HEHERRAZPRRMH - BAKEEPFT
VHAHREEBBREH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

All revenue contracts are for period of one year or less. As
permitted by HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of apparel
products with the provision of supply chain management
service for the year.

Segment information

The Group’s operating segment is determined based on
information reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM”) of the Group, being the executive directors of the
Company throughout the year, for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment. For management
purpose, the Group operates in one business unit based on
their products, and its sole operating segment is the sales of
apparel products with the provision of apparel supply chain
management. The CODM monitors the revenue, results, assets
and liabilities of its business unit as a whole and regularly
reviews financial information prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs which is consistent with those presented in this report,
and without further discrete financial information. Accordingly,
no analysis of segment information other than entity-wide
information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued)
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from customers by geographical location
of customers.

sk oEBER &)

DERE R (@)
wEER

REBERBEIEUNER °

REBRMIBLBEE S 2 FPWEMT

2018 2017

2018 F 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Germany = 71,112 64,433
France A 17,900 5,228
Switzerland I+ 3,288 510
Austria B i Fl| 6,434 -
Hong Kong BE 539 1,228
Korea 24 12,397 -
China i 192 -
111,862 71,399

Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of

BRI G A SR B AR E S E M 10% A LR &

the Group’s revenue of the corresponding year are as follows: Pz T
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Customer A =FA 31,483 27,959
Customer B ZFB 24,499 20,649
Customer C =FEC 12,397 —#
# No revenue was generated from the relevant customer for the # FABEREEATPEENNE -
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WaEkoHER @

(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEER ()
Geographical information (Continued) wEER (&)
Non-current assets (excluding deposits) by geographical MEEMEBANBESHIERDEE (T8I
location of assets are detailed below: TR EWNT
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Hong Kong BB 30,004 506
Germany = 8,583 9,583
38,587 10,089
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HflkA
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Financial guarantee income (note 23) B IS R (B 3E23) 816 21,548
Sample sales income B @i EBA 1,927 721
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 16 1
2,759 22,270
7. OTHER LOSSES 7. HwEE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Net loss on structured foreign currency & INE R IS L 1B S 58
forward contracts - (70)
Net foreign exchange loss HINGE 518 )F 58 (127) (739)
(127) (809)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BEMAK
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEZRFIE 153 397
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. BB
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 &
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EEMEH
Current tax BOEARY 3,081 2,404
Over-provision in prior years RB A FEREERE - (20)
3,081 2,384
Deferred taxation (note 24) IEFERLIA (fisE24) 160 343
3,241 2,727

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will BEBEEBNE2A8 8B THENKIZ8.25%
be taxed at 8.25% and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat

rate of 16.5%.

2018 4F 4R / L EIFR IR AR D R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

REHEX @

B BAFER  EENEREE2HE
555 7T 3B 4% 71 49 8.25% % 2 T 8 18 7T 1A
L PERRHFIN 16.5% 5T -

FARERX A AGAREREME2EK
MR ADE AR T

2018 2017

2018 F 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Profit before taxation PR T A1 15,753 25,192

Tax at the applicable Hong Kong Profits  {&iE i &8 FI1SFi i & (16.5%)

Tax rates (16.5%) SHEHRIA 2,599 4,157
Tax effect of income not taxable for DERBBANTH G L

tax purposes (137) (8,555)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR S RS 2 2

for tax purposes 944 2,145

Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE - (20)

Income tax at concessionary rate R GE T EA TSR (165) -

Income tax expense for the year FREBHEY 3,241 2,727
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HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FRHEF
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after £ 3% K T &1 A T & 18 1%
charging: ER
Directors’ remuneration (note 11): EEHM(FFEE11) - 2,511 1,504
Other staff costs: HME TR
— Salaries and other benefits — TEREMEF 2,506 2,833
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIREFIF B
contributions 103 120
2,609 2,953
Total employee benefits expenses BEERFEBRE 5,120 4,457
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR B & 900 480
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BE MEHEITE
equipment 379 88
Amortisation of intangible assets G 1,000 417
Cost of inventories recognised RIBHE AN T EKA
as cost of sales 80,002 44,867
Minimum lease payments under operating + i R EF 44T E 1
leases in respect of land and building SEEERNK 279 279
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HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments
Mr. Ko was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 19 January 2017. Mr. Ko Man Ho, son of Mr. Ko, and Mr.
Cheng Ka Wing were appointed as executive directors of the
Company on 8 July 2017. Mr. To King Yan, Adam Mr. Chan
Kim Sun and Mr. Kwok Chee Kin were appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company on 16
April 2018.

The remuneration paid or payable to the directors of the
Company were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EE FETHAEREEMH
€

EERFETHAEBMS
BEER2017F1 A19REZ T AARRAR]
BITEF maXAEEE(ERENRTF)R
EREREENR2017TF7HASHBEZ RN
REIMITEE - HBLCRE RAIZELE
MEBERSEAN2018F 4 A 16 HEZ I A
RABVETIEHITESE -

ENSHENARRESTZHMAT

BZ2018F 12831 HILFE

Contributions
Salaries and to retirement

other benefits
Fee benefits scheme Total
FeRHM BAEAFE
ik B H @st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FER THER THER THER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Ko =¥ 291 - 15 306
Ko Man Ho 23058 - 955 18 973
Cheng Ka Wing B - 977 18 995
291 1,932 51 2,274
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
To King Yan, Adam HEC 79 - - 79
Chan Kim Sun :pod 79 - - 79
Kwok Chee Kin FER 79 - - 79
237 - - 237
528 1,932 51 2,511
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HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 1. EE - FTETBRAEREEM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) cAC )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017F12A31BILEE
Contributions

Salaries and  to retirement

other benefits
Fee benefits scheme Total
HekEM RKENEE
e & i Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TET FHEL
Executive directors BiTES
Ko Sin Yun S8EED 296 - 7 303
Ko Man Ho (Note) =38 (BTsE) - 578 18 596
Cheng Ka Wing (Note) ERE (i) - 587 18 605
296 1,165 43 1,504
Note: The total remuneration paid to Mr. Ko Man Ho and Mr. Cheng Ka MizT - BE 2017612 A1 BIEEE @ ME XA
Wing during the year ended 31 December 2017 were for their A RER R E T AR AETN B B
services as employees of the Group’s operating subsidiary prior ZR2017F7 A8 HEZ T AR RARIBIT
to and after their appointment as executive directors of the EERRIEALTERNEENBAREER
Company on 8 July 2017. RERT -
The emoluments of executive directors shown above were for EXFATATESHE IRABERASE
their services in connection with the management of the affairs BRSPS ©
of the Group.
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown X REBYIRITEETMR IS EER
above were for their services as directors of the Company. KABIEEMRBEAZAT -
Employees’ emoluments EEB=2
The below table shows the five highest paid individuals of the TRETFRNAFENESHFMAL &
Group during the year, of which two (2017: one) are directors of R A (2017F « —&) ATREZE2018
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018. F12A BIEFERRATES -
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Salaries and other benefits e REMmEF 3,295 2,307
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & {&+& F 5 &4t 2k 85 4
3,380 2,384
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HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

11.

12.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 1. EE - FTETBRAEREEM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) cAC )
Employees’ emoluments (Continued) EEM @
The emoluments were within the following bands: EHER A T EE -
2018 2017

2018 2017 4F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 %1,000,000% 7T 5 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any FR AEERERTAARRESHA
of the directors of the Company or the chief executive of the EEFETBRAESRAEZEESFHFALTIN
Group or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to EREBE  BIMAREELRINAREE
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of ERRBSBARE - TR BEESZN
office. None of the directors waived any emoluments during the EEMBE -
year.
DIVIDENDS 12. RE

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since
its date of incorporation to 31 December 2017. However, a
subsidiary of the Company had declared interim dividends in
the amount of HK$4,300,000 to the Controlling Shareholder
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The directors of the Company has declared interim dividends
with an aggregate amount of HK$6,500,000 to its then sole
shareholder in April 2018 which had been fully settled.

Save as aforesaid, the Board declared a third quarter dividend
of HK$0.01 per Share, amounting to a total of HK$10,000,000
on 18 December 2018 which had been fully settled.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.013 per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: nil) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 10 May 2019. The
proposed final dividend, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM”) to be held on 3 May 2019, will be paid on or about 23
May 2019. This proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend
payable in these consolidated financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year
ending 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

13. BREF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
following data:

BRERBTTDENATEEFH

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Earnings: &R -
Earnings for the purpose of calculating ARt EEREARBF AT
basic earnings per share (profit for (FRaH)
the year) 12,512 22,465
‘000 ‘000
F i Fix
Number of shares: RMmHEE -
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose B &t & J% 5 7 2 1) ) 3 IR
of calculating basic earnings per share 2R 915,753 750,000

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share has been determined on the assumption
that the reorganisation and the Capitalisation Issue (as disclosed
in note 25) had been effective on 1 January 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share has been determined on the assumption
that the Capitalisation Issue had been effective on 1 January
2018.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there is no
potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.

HZE2017F12A31HIEFE - AREHE
BREXRBFOEBERMETHEEBR
FARERNMEBIT(BRBERME25) BER
20171 A1 HERMETE °

HZ2018F 12831 HILFE > ARHE
FREANRF AL BB MEFHHERRE
B LEEITE R2018F1 B1BAKMETE -

BHAMEFEAGEIMAEED ETER
b HOEZEREERN -
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HZE2018%F 12 A1 BILEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BEREE
Leasehold Computer
land and and office
building equipment Total
HELHE SBREERRQ
By B3] st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET
COST PR
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H - - -
Additions =Y - 594 594
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H - 594 594
Additions (Note 27) e (f3E27) 29,877 - 29,877
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 29,877 594 30,471
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZHTE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H - - -
Provided for the year FREE - 88 88
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H - - 88
Provided for the year FREE 260 119 379
At 31 December 2018 ®2018F12 A31H 260 207 467
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2018 »2018F12 A31H 29,617 387 30,004
At 31 December 2017 ®2017F12 431 H - 506 506

The above items of property, plant and equipment are i BEREEEE BEFEIRUT

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per HERIGEGEEITITE -

annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of HE T REF RERT T3
remaining land lease HEFHNA

Computer and office equipment 20% BRI ARE 20%

R2018F 12 A31H AEEKEEEY
29,617,000/ 7T (20174 : T)WHEE L
REFER T —MRT  UEBEBRETAE

At 31 December 2018, leasehold land and building of the
Group with carrying value of approximately HK$29,617,000
(2017: nil) were pledged with a bank to secure a loan granted
to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. EBLEE

Trademarks
5L
HK$’000
FET
COST 2%
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 H2016F 1 A1 HK20164F12 A31H -
Additions NE 10,000
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 12 A31H 10,000
Additions = -
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31 H 10,000
AMORTISATION 5
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 R2016F1 A1 HN20164F12 831 H -
Provided for the year FEREE 417
At 31 December 2017 H2017F12A31H 417
Provided for the year FEREE 1,000
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31 H 1,417
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31 H 8,583
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 9,583

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

following periods:

Trademarks

The Group acquired two trademarks from an independent third
party at an aggregate consideration of HK$10,000,000 in July

2017.

10 years e

LBV EEEARARERFH - ZFE
TREERAT BB RRE

104F

REBPH 201757 A LA 42 {8 10,000,000
IR — BB E = MR EEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

16. GOODS IN TRANSIT 16. EEEY
2018 2017
2018 5 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FAET
Finished goods in transit BRI T 1,557 926
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 17. ESEWRFRIE - AERARERRF
AND DEPOSITS EY
2018 2017
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FET
Trade receivables & 5 W RIA 18,866 8,691
Rental and utilities deposits VN EE o 153 95
Prepayments TR FRIA 7,821 1,201
Deferred listing expenses IERE ETRISZ - 3,703
26,840 13,690
Presented as non-current assets 2 RIERBEE 153 95
Presented as current assets I RRBEE 26,687 13,595
26,840 13,690
As at 31 December 2018, included in the balance of 201812 A31H » ) — A B8 &#E A A
prepayments, there is an amount of HK$2,484,000 (2017: nil) Meridian Industries Garment (Cambodia)
paid to a related company namely Meridian Industries Garment Limited (MIGCL ] - B8 = L 8 i L = 5
(Cambodia) Limited (“MIGCL”) which it is controlled by Mr. ENSe A R BB B AT S ) S 50IH 2,484,000
Murray Ko, brother of Mr. Ko and his spouse, such balance is BIL(2017F : B) - ZEAREREER
in connection with the sales of apparel products with the HERREHREHEETERSEEM -

provision of supply chain management services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 17. ESEWRAIE - AARERRF
AND DEPOSITS (Continued) ™M (E)
The Group either demands for full settlement upon delivery of AEBERRZNEYR2E8E G
goods or allows credit periods of no longer than 30 days upon AR EMRETZRIORNEER BT
delivery of goods, except that the Group allows credit period of ETEFP  AEEREBAXINEYRET
no longer than 120 days upon delivery of goods for certain ZR120RKIEEH
customers.
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables of the T AREEEMIZEZARZ2ME S
Group net of allowance for credit losses, if any presented based FEWFIER BRI D AT (FIBRE BB 1B R ) -

on the invoice dates:

2018 2017
2018 F 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Trade receivables H 5 EWRIE
110 30 days 1230k 7,728 5,687
31 to 60 days 31E60K 2,453 2,031
61 to 90 days 61 290K 853 13
Over 90 days PN 7,832 960
18,866 8,691
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the TEMTAFERPA - AEBEFHEE
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by EPHEEER  UBEEFPNEEEE -
customer. Credit limits attributed to customers and credit term ERRPNEEEERRTEPNEER
granted to customers are reviewed regularly. The majority of the 2EARE o WA BTN E R RE 5
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no B 5 FEWGRIA I #8 7 R I8 KD 8% ©

history of defaulting on repayments.

2018 4F 4R / L EIFR IR AR D R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F 12 831 HIEFE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 17. BEZRWFRE - AEARERRF

AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance were debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$2,171,000 as at 31 December 2017, which were
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
had not provided for impairment loss as the Group considered
such balances could be recovered based on historical
experience or have been subsequently settled. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which
were past due but not impaired:

Mg

R2017F12A31H - AEBENE RN
IR B IERRE 421 73 2,273,000 /& TTHY
FEWRRIE - HRREH R - REBEW
EFMFHRREESE DERAEEER
BRERAATREEBEHRIEEDE
B o ANEEN R Z T AR E A

o

B0 &

B i BB AR R (E 0 5 SR T B 5 I
T :

At 31 December

2017
W12 A31H
HK$’000
T

Overdue by: 3B HA
1 to 30 days 1£230K 695
31 to 60 days 31E£60K 1,377
61 to 90 days 61ZE 90K 13
Over 90 days 90K E 86
2,171

Before the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, in
determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of each
reporting period. The trade receivables past due but not
provided for as at the end of each reporting period were either
subsequently settled or no historical default of payments was
noted by the respective customers and the management of the
Group believes that no impairment required.

No allowance for bad and doubtful debt was provided during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and no balance of provision
for bad and doubtful debt had been recognised as at 31
December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 17. EZRWRFHE - AEARERRF

AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables and
measures the lifetime ECL on each debtor individually.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the trade receivables
were an aggregate amount of HK$12,898,000 which are not
past due and regarded as having low default risk by the
management of the Company based on regular repayment
history in the ECL assessment.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the trade receivables,
HK$5,968,000 are past due and out of the past due balances,
HK$3,688,000 has been past due 90 days or more and are not
considered as in default by considering the on-going business
relationship, repayment history and expected future settlement.
For the remaining balance amounting to HK$2,280,000, the
management of the Company has assessed the ECL of these
balances by applying an average expected credit loss rate with
reference to the market available information for retail industry.

The management of the Group have assessed the ECL of all
trade receivables as insignificant and therefore it did not result
in an impairment allowance for the current year.

Since the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, there has
been no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made.

Trade receivables and deposits denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

()

20181 A1 A ER BBV B R E AR
FONE  NEBERAESY B REER
FORE S A LN ERBEEEE &
HIMBESEWFERGRAFEHERE
BEE WHEEEEAER 21758
TBEAEEEE o

R2018F 12 A31H - B 5 EIKKIBERE
12,898,000/ oL M 4 - B AR QR E B
EEREHREEBEFENTHERES
REAREHRR

201812 A31H * BEZEKFKIEE F
5,968,000/ L B @ B - M@ B PR E R
3,688,000/8 7L 2 @ HIQ0 A A £ - B &
ERIFEEBRE  ERE L RIBHRK
HEEMmMAEEREN BT HEK
2,280,000 8 TME - ARAEERED ER
ERTFHEREEEEET MRS EHRN
BHEEEE ER2EZTETENNS
EAEBER

AEBEEREDAEMAE S RKKIER
HHEEFBERTEAN  REALTEZH
REZRERE -

H2018F1 A1 HERB MK IME LR
FOSE  HMEHFFIEABRKRLELIR
HEEBE RSB AN EETED
B S REWGIERTRETOT

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHT

EUR BLoT 4,912 1,608
HK$ BT 854 117
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARB(TARYE]D - 874
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

18.

19.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
PARTIES
Amount due from ultimate holding company

18.

FEW,PEASBRE 5 TR
N BR AR PR AR R B R IR

Maximum amount
outstanding

during the year ended
As at 31 December 31 December
BEREESHE
W12A31H BZ12A31ALEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F 2018 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT THERT FET
Metro Vanguard Metro Vanguard - 8 8 8

The amount was non-trade in nature, denominated in HKS,
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand and was
settled during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Amount due from controlling shareholder

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the maximum
amount due from Mr. Ko being approximately HK$22,681,000
which is non-trade in nature denominated in HK$, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The amount has been
settled during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities and the
Company are set out below:

19.

FZHERIFE S INE
IR L IR ERIER
HAB1RIEFEEE -

i U H2E A % BR SRR
MEZE2017F12 A1 B ILFE Bt S
SERIBER &S E422,681,0008 T4
FEEZMHEE - UBTEE - BEF - 28
MIRERERE - Z2BEREE2017F 12
AB1HIEFEHE -

RITEHRRAE
SAERRSE B R B R A A R AL AN
EHFIENBRTERERERIINT -

CDUBTTEME - BB
- BREI 22018 12

2018 2017
2018 F 2017

HK$’000 HK$’'000

Tz FHEIT

EUR BT 3,479 2,684
HK$ T 789 1,042
RMB AR 110 63

Certain bank balances of the Group are subject to covenants
with a bank, details of which is disclosed in note 22.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded that
the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are
insignificant as the Group only transacts with reputable banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies. Details of impairment assessment of bank balances
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EZ R HMENFIE
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAET
Trade payables B 5 e IE 8,390 1,668
Accrued expenses BRI 1,554 5,804
Deposits received BUIES - 194
Other payables Hib R R 1,758 1,424
11,702 9,090

BEEMNEEHRTZNI0X - RER
SR AREREZAHZINE SR
MRIERE ST

The credit period on purchase of goods is no longer than 30
days. The ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of each
reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 4

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

110 30 days 1E 30K 7,957 489
31 to 60 days 31E£60XK 433 1,179
8,390 1,668

RS EERNEERANEEIIE
B 5N EMENKIBHIINT

Trade and other payables denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out

below.
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 £
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
EUR BT 1,132 682
HK$ HBEIT 1,518 6,293
RMB AR 18 15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21. ENEE
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2018 2018~
H2018 5 20184
12H381H 1H18*
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Contract liabilties: aHatE:
Sales of apparel products with AR E% 2 G SH B R IR AR 2 (i FE
the provision of supply chain PEETRARTE
management services 17 194
* The amount in this column are after the adjustments from the * AP EEARERE BV HRELE
application of HKFRS 15. B 1557 EEL FHEE -
When the Group receives a deposit before the control of the WMAEBRREERMNIEHEERCERP
apparel products are passed to the customers, this will give rise AIEITFR - AIE 0B ERENERBE
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the control of £ EEREEMNEHEERERFP R
the apparel products are passed to the customers and revenue EERSE LN -
of the respective contracts are recognised.
For the contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018, the entire Fh2018F1 A1EMEHNEEMS @ B
balances are recognised and will be recognised as revenue to REFBLEER - WHREE20184F 12 A 31
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2018. At FEHERERER B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

22. BANK BORROWINGS 22, RITER
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Secured bank borrowings EEBIRITER 10,904 -
Unsecured bank borrowings RIFIPERITRE K - 6,800
10,904 6,800
Carrying amounts of bank borrowings $ETFE$’XT£%#Fﬁ%EB’\FJr§U
based on scheduled repayment dates BB RITERIREE -
set out in the loan agreements:
Within one year —F R 584 4,800
More than one year, but not more —FLAE - ETEBBRE
than two years 608 2,000
More than two years, but not more MEAE - BIEBRF
than five years 1,942 -
More than five years HEE 7,770 -
10,904 6,800
Analysed as: DT ¢
Amounts due within one year shown TR MBI BEIR T —F N B
under current liabilities and contain BERERERGETNEHE
a repayment on demand clause 584 4,800
Amounts that are not repayable within REREBRE —FRREER
one year from the end of the reporting BEBREREENEEE
period but contain a repayment on FIRREBEBEET)
demand clause (shown under
current liabilities) 10,320 2,000
10,904 6,800
Less: amounts shown under current A PR E B EIE TRFKIE
liabilities (10,904) (6,800)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F 12 831 HIEFE

22. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 22. RITER @)

The variable-rate bank borrowings carry interests at premiums
over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”). The
effective interest rate on bank borrowings is 2.83% per annum
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: ranging from 2.71% to 2.96%
per annum).

As at 31 December 2018, the entire balance of the Group’s
bank borrowing is secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of HK$29,617,000.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group together with certain
related companies controlled by Mr. Murray Ko and his spouse
entered into several banking facilities with banks in Hong Kong
for combined facilities with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$473,959,000, which are shared by the
Group and related parties. The banking facilities are secured by
assets held by the Group or related parties and/or guaranteed
by related parties, details of which is set out as follow:

(@  Unlimited personal guarantee by Mr. Murray Ko and his
spouse;

(b) Unlimited cross corporate guarantee by related
companies controlled by Mr. Murray Ko and his spouse;

(c)  Unlimited cross corporate guarantee by Vision Garments
(a subsidiary of the Company);

(d) Time deposits held with a bank, whereas the bank
deposits amounts held by Vision Garments (a subsidiary
of the Company) and related companies controlled by Mr.
Murray Ko and his spouse are not less than
HK$100,000,000 in aggregate as at 31 December 2017;

(e)  Certain properties of related companies controlled by Mr.
Murray Ko and his spouse;

()  Certain life insurance policies held by related companies
controlled by Mr. Murray Ko and his spouse; and

() Cash deposits of not less than HK$500,000 together with
all interest accrued thereon by Mr. Ko as at 31 December
2017.
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ZEF R RITERBIBEEBRITRERE
((BEEBTRALKFE D 2B B
20184 12 A31 8 » RITIEFM BB FFI=
72.83% (20174 « FF E N F2711% %
2.96%) °

R2018F12 A31 H » AEEETEER
PR S B AKEIREE £29,617,0007%
TCEOE - B R EE IR o

PR2017F 12 A31H - AE B[R =55
SERARBIEGNE THERTHSK
EEIRITHLAA SR 473,959,000 B TLH &
HREHMOIRITRE  AAEEKH
ERoH RITHMEBREENEER
BHEE R, BEE RERERERT
FHEHIOT

(@ SHMEERARBHNERREEARL
*

b SHENEERERBEGNEERR
B[R AR N R R AR

(© AR —FEMBA B EBEKHER
BRXRAEER

(d  R—FHKIRITHE TR - R2017F
12A3818  AARQA—FEHNEAR
BB R K =85 ED 5 A I EL B (8 122
MEEARRENRITEREEEAH
A 100,000,000 78 7T

€ SHNEERERBERNEERR
METHE

0 SHENEERERBERNEERR
RAENETASRRRE &

(@ R20174 12 A31 8 7 2 1 500,000
BB eReBERRLENESR
FAFERT & o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

22.

23.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

In addition, bank borrowings of HK$6,800,000 are guaranteed
by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited,
respectively, under the SME Financing Scheme and personal
guarantee limited to HK$12,000,000 by Mr. Ko.

Such personal guarantee, corporate guarantee and securities
provided by related parties were released upon the Listing, and
the entire balance of bank borrowing as at 31 December 2017
is fully settled during year ended 31 December 2018.

Bank borrowings denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

22. RITEFR @)

ItESI - 6,800,000 78 LRI SRTTE XD BIR IE
RN ERVE R B R BB RITT BUE BT
LRBEARBERABER: RASLEEN
12,000,000 % 7T AR ERAFELR ©

ZERBEEFREMNEAAER  2FER
RERE R ETRERR - MR2017F 12
A31AMERTER2HEHNE Z2018
F12A31 AILFERHLE -

NEREEERNIEERIAINERTIE
EIRITREREINNT

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
HK$ BT 10,904 6,800
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITY AND MBEREBERARERE
CONTINGENT LIABILITY
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Financial guarantee liability recognised sEmEE N TR ER
on consolidated statements of financial R4 & BISIRA R A
position in respect of: RNV B EREE P
Guarantees provided to related
companies (Note) - 816
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Financial guarantee income credited to st A F BRRKRA BT
profit or loss including:
Guarantees provided to related ) B N AR A R AR (BT5E)
companies (Note) 816 21,548
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e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

23.

24,

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITY AND 23. K EREERIAREE @
CONTINGENT LIABILITY (Continued)
Note: B EE -
As detailed in note 22, the Group and certain companies controlled by A sE22FTHl c AEE R A SIHNEERE
Mr. Murray Ko and his spouse entered into several banking facilities BB IR Hl s TR TR L BN RITRE ik - I
agreements and cross guarantees are provided by the Group and the HZANEE RS54k 4 & AR E1E S8 A 7R H
companies controlled by Mr. Murray Ko and his spouse. As at 31 RXIER - 72017512 A31 B - KEE R E
December 2017, the combined facilities under such banking facilities NARENZERITHERZINERZ A HEE
and cross guarantees, which are provided by the Group to related WREEH) /472,123,000 70 - IS ERNEX S
companies, are with an aggregate amount of approximately VIR ER BB A BT IRH EARE B EERD
HK$472,123,000. The fair value of the financial guarantee as their B A E R EMEMN I E BT A RERAT
respective initial recognition date were arrived at on the basis of (b R E B ST BR B 1885k I L 0 2348)
valuation carried out by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited with address EITHEEESR - BEROATEREESE
of 23rd Floor, Siu On Centre, No. 188 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong (BRI ERE A AT BE 1t R Uk B by 3R ) Ko 7 2 [ T R
Kong, independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the MERER(DEAFEIRATEE)TE - 8
Group. The fair value of the financial guarantee was calculated based BRERROETATERAAMEERERE - B
on credit spread (including the assumption on probability of default and L LERYIRHER B HILARERIED IRIEHEZ N
recovery ratio) and the maximum exposure of the facility to the Group B o RUIRIERE  REBIRUTREZ RS E
which is classified as level 3 fair value measurement. The estimated fair FFEMBEREL  (\IREBEEEGTEREITR
value of the financial guarantee was recognised as financial guarantee [BE ABBRIAREE] EENEHNIETER
liability with the equivalent amount charged to equity as shareholder as E2E(R2018F1 A1BERBE B BRELE
deemed distribution at the initial recognition date. Subsequent to the BSOSk, BIEFTAMEREERF IR (A
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract 2018F1 A1HR) BEMEBEREESTE &)
at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as LR TR S TR (1858 ) IR R U MR BUR T 2
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent A TSN o
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018)/the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018); and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policy.
The financial guarantee liabilities were all denominated in HK$. All the MBEREB2MAETHE - AAEERHET
cross guarantee provided by the Group to related companies were BN R A R X ERE R LR AR o
released upon Listing.
DEFERRED TAXATION 24, EEBIIE
Accelerated
tax Intangible
depreciation assets Total
IEBIBINE BIEE et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H - - -
Charge to profit or loss (note 9) BB (HEE9) 82 261 343
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 12 A31H 82 261 343
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (note 9) (3t A\) BIEZS % (M55 9) 5) 165 160
At 31 December 2018 2018 12 A31H 77 426 503
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL

The balance of share capital as at 1 January 2017 represented
the share capital of Market Gala attributable to Mr. Ko prior to
the completion of the group reorganisation. The balance of

25. g7

R2017F1 A1 BB ARG RIEEBEEA
T2 A Al = 55 4 FE 15 Market Gala By A& 248
2017 F 12 A1 B AEHRIER R AN

share capital as at 31 December 2017 represented the share ARA o
capital of the Company.
Details of movements of share capital of the Company are ARBMRASESFHBRBELO T -
disclosed as follows:
Number Share
of shares capital
[ &nE ¢! [N
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of US$1 each SREE1EZTHE @R
Authorised: VETE
At 19 January 2017 (date of incorporation) #2017 41 A 19 B (37 B ER) 50,000 390
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR EEO.01 B Th A%
Authorised: VATE
At 31 December 2017 (Note (i) R2017 412 A31 B (EE() 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital oA E B (B3 (i)

(Note (i) 9,962,000,000 99,620
At 31 December 2018 M2018F 12 A31 H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITREHRT
At 19 January 2017 (date of incorporation) #2017 41 A 19 B (37 B ER) 1 -
Issuance of shares (Note (iii)) BEATREAD (PR (i) 99 1
At 31 December 2017 ©K2017F12 531 H 100 1
Capitalisation issue (Note (iv)) BT (V) 749,999,900 7,499
Issuance of new shares upon listing A E TR REITHRR (M 5E (V)

(Note (v)) 250,000,000 2,500
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31 B 1,000,000,000 10,000
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e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F 12 831 HIEFE

25.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Board and the sole
shareholder dated 7 July 2017, the authorised share capital of
the Company was re-denominated into HK$380,000, divided
into 38,000,000 Shares of HK$0.01 each.

(i) Pursuant to the resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on 16
April 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$380,000 to HK$100,000,000 by the creation
of an additional 9,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

(iy ~ On 15 February 2017, as part of the Group’s reorganisation, the
Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Market
Gala, from Metro Vanguard, at a consideration of 99 new Shares
of the Company to Metro Vanguard, all credited as fully paid.

(iv) Pursuant to the resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on 16
April 2018, conditional upon the share premium account of the
Company being credited as a result of the share offer, the
directors were authorised to capitalise the amount of
HK$7,499,999 from the amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company to pay up in full at par
of 749,999,900 Shares for allotment and issuance to Metro
Vanguard (“Capitalisation Issue”).

(v) On 4 May 2018, 250,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at a price of
HK$0.225 per Share by way of share offer.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes the
lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of relevant payroll costs per person
to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by the
employees.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
retirement benefits schemes is to make the specified
contributions. The total amounts contributed by the Group to
the schemes and costs charged to the profit or loss represents
contributions paid or payable to the scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the scheme. The retirement
benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted to
HK$154,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$145,000).

136  VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

25.

26.

& NE)
BEE -

0] BEZEESRE—REN2017F7A7AH
BIBAREER  ANARKEERAEFT
{& /A 380,000/8 7T * 9 /38,000,000 f% &
AXE{E 0.01 B TTHIRRD ©

(ii) BB — R EN2018F4 16 H@EBH
SR LA R 9,962,000,000 A% & &
BE0.01 B TR TR ARBNEER
7K F1 380,0007% JT # A1 Z 100,000,000
5T o

iy HR2017F2A158 FASEBEHN—
5 AN A 7] | Metro Vanguard 12 8§
Market Galaf) 2 3B Z 1T R4 - fEAR
8 AN R A% 179908 ¥ % 15 F Metro
Vanguard * 2EBABRVIERE -

vy IREWE—REN2018F4 16 ABBEN
RBR - FARARMDEERAROEE
kEmmARRE  RRESBARQRKRND
% B8R & B 97,490,999 8 ;L & AL -
b #% T (B SR 749,999,900 f% A {7+ A4
fic 2% 12 317 F Metro Vanguard ([ & 248t 3
T -

v) R2018F 5 A48 + AN QRIS EEO0.01
78 7T K9 250,000,000 A% 3 i A% LA B& 19 3% &
F AT 0.225 B TTHBIRIETT o

RAKBERETE
AEBAEBEBLAMEBELRRY
MAHSHE ((RBEHB]) - 824
ERAREZAEHE  LaREARE
ZHERE -

HEBEEKEMNE - AEB AL ME
BeFEINESED 1,500 TR AERE
FEM A% (UREEBE)EA
T mEE MERSEER -
REEGRZERKEFNAZNEENEER
EHIEE R HR - REEMZ S EIED
W EE R ABROR AN E A EEiL
ZERTEIRBRE O E R Z A B R A sk
JERTHEFR - BiE2018F 12 A1 B IEF
B REBERARKENEEHRE
154,000 7T (2017 4F : 145,000 7C) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M B RR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Related party balances
Details of the outstanding balances with related parties are set
out in the consolidated statements of financial position and in
notes 17, 18, 22 and 23.

27. BEFHE
BB iR
HEBE AN REEEHFBIANGREYH
SRR NMIFE17 - 18 22 K% 23 -

FBEARS

BiFEMBmEEMBOMABEEEIN B
HZE2018F12AGIHIEFE » AEEHE
BTN IATR S ¢

Related party transactions

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group entered into the following transactions with related

parties:
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2018 2017
BELEH XHME 2018 F 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
MIGCL Purchase for the apparel products 2,969 -
MIGCL BEREESR
Wisewing International Limited (Note) Rental expenses - 49

Wisewing International Limited (Fi3%) &%

Br Fat B EE SN - 4£20184F 10 A 150 847
MR RERREH & ~EEUBESRE

Apart from the above disclosed, upon the approval from
extraordinary general meeting which held on 15 October 2018,

the Group completed the acquisition of a leasehold land and
building from Wisewing International Limited at a cash
consideration of HK$27,500,000. Such leasehold land and
building referred as an industrial unit which located in Hong
Kong and it is used as a showroom of the Group.

Note: Wisewing International Limited is controlled by Mr. Murray Ko.

27,500,000 7T 58 AKX U HEWisewing
International Limited #FH & 1= R IEF o 3%
EHETHREFEAUNEENTES
iz - W AEREBEAIRYE o

izt - Wisewing International Limited i = #5 E1 5¢

A o
Compensation of key management personnel TEEE A 8
The remuneration of directors of the Company, being the key REANERRNREE(FBEEBAS) NE M
management personnel, during the year were as follows: mnr
2018 2017
20184 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short term benefits EHATE R 2,460 1,461
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 1R F 51 43
2,511 1,504
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28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. EXEMER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group REBEBTEREER  URREE QAR
companies will be able to continue as a going concern while WIFECE  RBRELESRERT
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation & KPR Z I8 AR SR B3R - BRI B
of the debt and equity balance. The overall strategy remains BEFERBTE -
unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which REENEREBHFEBHEX  BER
includes bank borrowings disclosed in note 22, net of cash and TIEREERKE22) MBRRERES
cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owner of the EEUWARARTEE AEEER (BIEE
Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and BATHOR - RERE N R E A EHE) -
other reserves.
The directors of the Group review the capital structure regularly. AEEEETHRTERLEE - (EALLE
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost and the S —ED EEERERKAREEE
risks associated with each class of the capital. Based on the BEAREBANRR ERNEFENES 45
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its B EmBEITHR  BTHEELER
overall capital structure through issue of new shares, issue of MBEEBFEHBEERERE -
new debt and redemption of existing debts.
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20. €@ T H
Categories of financial instruments TRITEDSH
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERRERFE(BERE R
and cash equivalents) ReEEY) - 32,561
Financial assets at amortised cost R EKATENEREE 56,827 -
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities measured at REEK AT EN B E
amortised cost 21,052 15,696
Financial guarantee liability EAISIEIRBE - 816
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 2. @@ IR

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables and deposits, amount due from ultimate holding
company, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
bank borrowings and financial guarantee liability.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risks (currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

TRIRREREBEREE

REENTESHTEAREE S MEME
WRIB RIFR - B S LR A RIFRIE
RITEBRERS B 5 REMEMNKIE
RITERRVBERAE -

BREZE SR T AMFHBR AR ERE
R s EEIEJBEEE’UHﬁ ﬁ.f‘ﬁi%ﬂﬁ
(85 531 Eﬂ&ﬂgfz@ ﬁ) l:l/\ //|L§7J
BoRk o BIEZERROBER ﬁﬁf\\TK o
ERESERNMERRSREBAE  BR
KB BRBUEE fE it ©

b=13

Market risk G R
Currency risk EmE e

Certain trade receivables, other receivables and deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, bank borrowings
and financial guarantee liability of the Group are denominated in
foreign currencies of the respective group entities which are
exposed to foreign currency risk.

The Group currently do not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

AEBWETE S EKFR - HfdEYEGR
BRER  RiTEHIRS  BHREM
FERRR - RITEA M BEREBGENE
BEEEERNMEERIIE  ZFEE@
BRSNS L o

REEE B AT EmONE P BOR o AT

)
BEEERINERBAE  UBNEREE
BEHERINE @S o
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 20. e T A
Financial risk management objectives and TRl E IR B R R )
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) s ER (&)
Currency risk (Continued) B (E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency RERMSESHAR - AEBLINETERNEE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each BENMBEBEZER@EHNT :

reporting period are as follows:

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Assets BE
EUR & T 8,391 4,292
HK$ BT 1,643 1,167
RMB AR 110 937
Liabilities &
EUR Bt 1,132 682
HK$ BT 12,422 13,909
RMB ARHE 18 15
Sensitivity analysis BURE ST
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on fluctuation of AEBREZE2017F X 2018F 12 A31H
EUR, RMB and HK$ for the years ended 31 December 2018 IFFEERBIT - AR REITTEEAI
and 2017. Bk o
Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pledged with US$, the Group A IE R B XM - REETEHE
does not expect any significant movements in the US$/HK$ THABTEXRA AN EMEREE -
exchange rates. Therefore, the following sensitivity analysis b AT RES M ABiEETEB T
does not include the effect between US$ and HKS. FRE -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 2. @@ IR

Financial risk management objectives and TRtE R E IR B R REGR
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) s EK (%)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) HRE T ()

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2017:
5%) increase and decrease in foreign currencies against US$ as
at 31 December 2018. The percentage of the sensitivity rate
used represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates at the year ended. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where
foreign currencies strengthens 5% against US$. For a 5%
weakening of foreign currencies against US$, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on post tax profit.

TRFHNAREBR 20184 12 A 31 B ¥ 5h
B T E MR E 5% (2017 4F : 5%) Y
BRRE - - MASBEAEILARREREEY
INEETE R RE A BB 271G - RE D
TR ERIZF R INEER 5% S B)FEEE
HBE o TXIEEURINE K ETTHES%E
BREZIEE G0 o HHNE HETTEIES%
R R N EESHARTE -

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 £

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Impact on post-tax profit of the Group HWAREBBRB B SMNE R 307 189

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and bank borrowings. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuations of the HIBOR.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the interest-bearing financial
assets and financial liabilities outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year and basis
points increase or decrease is used. Bank balances are
excluded from sensitivity analysis as the directors of the
Company consider that the exposure of cash flow interest rate
risk arising from variable-rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates on variable-rate interest-bearing financial
liabilities had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the years
ended 31 December 2018 would decrease/increase by
HK$46,000 (2017: HK$28,000).

A EEEGRE TR RTERRBTER
WESRENRAR - AEEHRERE
FEAREEEFREERTRALRE
W -

BRE DT

AT BURRE DT R B N RS BRI = &
REE MBS TH S BRERREK
HAEENEEREERSRABRE
1¢F§i’-}5ﬁ1§i§iﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁibﬂ%ﬁd\ °
BREMMAETNERRITES  BAR
%%E«%’xﬁﬁ(??@ﬁﬁj%ﬁ'gEﬁfﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬂ'muﬁ%
MELHRSRENETERFELTEKX -

WAZFB R EFEMemABEZ ME L
FtTBRBOEZSE - T AT A b B B
N R ASEBEE E2018F 12 A31H Lt
FEER D B L4 hn 46,0007 7T
(2017 £ : 28,0007 L) °
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €W IR

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables as stated in note 17, and bank balances as stated
in note 19. Other than those financial assets whose carrying
amounts best represent the maximum exposure to credit risk,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group arising from the amount of
contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees provided
by the Group is disclosed in note 23.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
Management of the Group adopted a policy on providing credit
facilities to new customers. A credit investigation of the
customers or the ultimate customers if those contracts allow
the Group to obtain payment directly from the ultimate
customers under certain circumstance, including assessment of
financial information and advice from business partners in
relation to potential customers would be required to be
launched. The level of credit granted must not exceed a
predetermined level set by the management. Credit evaluation
is performed on a regular basis.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 25.8% (2017: 56.2%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest debtor. The Group’s
concentration of credit risk on the top five largest debtors
accounted for 89.5% (2017: 95.7%) of the total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018. For a long-term
customer, the Group allows a credit term of 120 days upon
delivery of goods. For other customers, the Group either
demands for full settlement upon delivery of goods or allows
credit periods of no longer than 30 days upon delivery of goods.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 2. @@ IR

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk of trade receivables, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
provisions for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts on trade receivables. Under HKAS 39, provisions for
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. Upon
the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the Group
applies simplified approach on trade receivable to provide for
ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9 with details disclosed in note 17.
In this regard, management of the Group considers that the
credit risk on trade receivables is significantly reduced.

Bank balance

The Group has concentration of credit risk on its bank balances
as the entire balances as at 31 December 2018 are deposited
with four (2017: three) banks. The credit risk for bank balances
is considered not material as such amounts are placed in
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. There has been no recent
history of default in relation to these banks and thus the risk of
default is regard as low.

For deposits, management of the Group makes periodic as
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information starting from 1 January 2018. The management of
the Group believes that there is no material credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding balance of other receivables and
deposits.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 290, £ET A
Financial risk management objectives and TRl E IR B R R )
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk REBEESRAM
In management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the Company REBRDESRARE  AEERAQFA
monitor and maintain levels of cash and cash equivalents ERB e RIRSFEMAKTE  BHER
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s REBERBEEOKT BT AEHE
and the Company’s operations and mitigate the effects of RARBINEEMS  MRERESRER
fluctuations in cash flows. TR -
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s TRAMAEB AR ERMEEHRT
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The SHRFNEBEN - ZRDBBEASERARQ
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash AANERHEERE CHNRUBERSR
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which EMHE - HBME  B8REKEREK
the Group and the Company can be required to pay. HEVRITIER - TwmARIRITE S EET
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on demand FEERN  HIAZRBREZARA - H
clause are included in the earliest time band regardiess of the teRmaE IR IUEE2EEAY
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The RELE -
maturity dates for other financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.
Liquidity tables HEER K
Weighted
average Total
effective Repayable Within  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 3months  cash flows amount
MEFH FRRE
ERAZ  REREE AR REAH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% Tin Tin AL TEx
As at 31 December 2018 R2018E 124318
Non-derivative financial liabilities ETESREE
Trade and other payables BoREMENTE NATER 7,508 2,641 10,148 10,148
Bank borrowings — variable rate FTER - 2B 2.83 10,904 - 10,904 10,904
18,412 2,641 21,052 21,052
As at 31 December 2017 R2017E12 431
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTEeRas
Trade and other payables ZHRAENFE NATEH 1179 7,717 8,89 8,89
Bank borrowings — variable rate RITER — FBFE 284 6,800 - 6,800 6,800
Financial guarantes liabilty BEREE NATER 472,123 - 472,123 816
480,102 7,717 487,819 16,512
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 2. @@ IR

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the amounts included above for
financial guarantee liability were the maximum amounts the
Group could be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on the expectations at
the end of the reporting period, management considered that it
is more likely than not that no amount would be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming under
the guarantees which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty which guaranteed
suffer credit losses. Details of the financial guarantees are set
out in note 283.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “repayable on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank borrowings were
HK$10,904,000 (2017: HK$6,800,000), respectively.

T R EIE B AR MR ()

REESER (E)

RE A& K (&)

B2017F12A31H - LIl EREE
FIegsiE  HRAMERNEFAIRELE
BREAERANEEERBEEBETHEEZ
FENGRESE ERERSHAKRZER
B BERERRNTETRAMETA
A EAIFRIE o AT - R AR TEF
FIRBERRELRROEERMNE - Mz
BERRHUFHAFEDEREBEBIER
REBEEEEBEEMEMARTER - BAM
BEERFFIEH N E23 o

MEZREREBEFIORITEREEL L
ME| BB AT 2 [RERER ] ORFERNA -
R2018F 12 A31 B » ZERITERZE
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. £ET A )
Financial risk management objectives and TRl E IR B R R )
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESER(E)
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors WERAEB BN  ARBESR
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks RRIT PRI @17E H B IS5 Z kAN
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate B e ZK"T%%R%EZ%?EH%?KH&E
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such ERBEASCHEERBBHEES -
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the 2018412 A31H - ?“.?Hq2$i&ﬂ,%fﬁ
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At & 4B FE 5 & 13,590,000 7% 7T (2017 4F -
that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will 6,946,000 7T) * FEIBE#RIIAT -
amount to HK$13,590,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$6,946,000), respectively and set out as below:
Weighted Total
average Within 3 months 1-5 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years 5years cash flow amount
mERSH KBRS
BRFIE 3EAR  BAEIE  1EE5F SENL it £ Bl
% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
% TET THn TR TR T#n TR
Bank borrowings — variable rate RTEH-FBRZ
As at 31 December 2018 H2018512A31H 283 235 687 3,603 9,006 13,590 10904
As at 31 December 2017 R2O1TE12A31H 284 1,245 3,686 2015 - 6,946 6,300

The amounts included above for variable rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable rates differ to those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of the year.

Fair value

The management considers that the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements at the
end of each year approximate to their fair values. Such fair
values have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease
payments in respect of office premises rented under non-
cancellable operating lease which fall due as follows:

30. REHERIE
REBEEAAMEA
7 2 [ 75 B AR 125 7 AT J4 5 A8 44 7 5 TR o
ATISH (B ) 0k & K B 5%
ENR

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 &

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Within one year —%FR 47 279
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRAF(RREEEMT) - 47
47 326

The above operating lease payments represent rental payable
by the Group for office premises. Lease for office premises is

negotiated and fixed for a term of two years.

FAREHENREAEBEENLES
FENES - BRSO ENRER
HIM4F -
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31. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31. KFEHRERERMT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRALAEEELAERETHHAEN
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash 23 pRERELIHeETH MEFTIH
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EEXNBEAERESR=E YN AEEMNE
which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be, classified in SHeEMERDBERIERKRERER
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows RAKENGERERERDEARMER
from financing activities. PSR RENEE -
Accrued Amount due
issue Dividend Bank  toarelated
costs payable  borrowings company Total
-
JESTBATRIAR EfRE BOER BENARE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tin Tin T T
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A18 - - 12978 3,261 16,239
Financing cash flows BABLRE - (4,300 (6,575) (3,261) (14,136)
Dividend declared EEREE - 4300 - - 4300
Finance cost Erpriam - - 397 - 397
Issue cost accrued TR BITAR 3,703 - - - 3,703
At 31 December 2017 R017E12 4318 3,703 - 6,800 - 10,503
Financing cash flows BERENE (7,807) (16,500) 3,951 - (20,356)
Dividend declared EERERS - 16,500 - - 16,500
Finance cost BHBRA - - 153 - 153
Issue cost accrued JEEHEATIA 4104 - - - 4104
At 31 December 2018 Ro0185 127318 - - 10904 - 10,904
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

32. AATEHBKER

COMPANY
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tz FHEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Unlisted investment in a subsidiary R—EHBARNIELTERE 30,284 23,967
Amount due from a subsidiary e Sy EENGIE 24,324 -
54,608 23,967
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments T FE 339 3,703
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRNIRS 103 46
442 3,749
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables H At ET5RIE 381 4,967
Amount due to a subsidiary AR O EPNGIE S - 10,901
381 15,868
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) ARE&EE (&%) S8 61 (12,119
NET ASSETS EERE 54,669 11,848
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERNHE
Share capital RN 10,000 1
Reserves G 44,669 11,847
54,669 11,848
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A1 HIEFE

32. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF 32. AATMBER @)
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserve ZAN/NE A
Share Other  Accumulated
premium reserve loss Total
Rina(E HibfE 25T ER wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET THT
As at 19 January 2017 201751 A 198
(date of incorporation) (FEMARSZ B ) - - - -
Loss for the period HXEE - - (12,120) (12,120)
Reserve arising from group REEEEENHE
reorganisation - 23,967 - 23,967
As at 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H - 23,967 (12,120) 11,847
Loss for the year FRER - - (6,622) (5,622)
Issue of shares upon share offer BRI BT (B 25(v)
(note 25 (v) 53,750 - - 53,750
Capitalisation issue (note 25 (iv) AR EmETR G
(B2 25() (7,499) - - (7,499)
Transaction cost directly attributable  Z/TR 7 B EIGE AR
to issue of shares (7,807) - - (7,807)
As at 31 December 2018 2018512 431 H 38,444 23,967 (17,742) 44,669
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the amounts due from/to a M2017F & 2018412 A31 B - Ut fE
subsidiary were denominated in HK$, unsecured, interest-free M B RARGRIBT A ITAE + &KW
and repayable on demand. RERBIREREE -

150  VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 and

2017 are as follows:

MEBARFE

R2017 F % 2018F 12 A31 H » B A F]

T :

Equity interest

Issued and attributable to
Place and date  Place of fully paid the Group
Name of subsidiary of incorporation operation  share capital as at 31 December  Principal activity
2018 2017
TR B L 3t B BERTR AEER12A318
) PNCIRCE RAH EENY  MERE WL TEER
2018 2017
% %
Market Gala BvI Hong Kong  Ordinary share 100 100 Investment holding Limited
10 March 2010 USS$1
Market Gala EBRUHES B ERR1ET REERERRA
201043 A10H
Vision Garments Hong Kong Hong Kong  Ordinary shares 100 100  Sales of apparel Limited
17 March 2010 HK$24,000,000 products with the provision
of apparel supply chain
management services
S E 9 =gl FREEREE REHRS
201063 A17H 24,000,000 70 HIERER R

None of the subsidiaries had issued and debt securities of the

end of the year.

FREENBRRETEMNEBES -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and equity of the Group for
the last four financial years is as follows:

AEERBENEYRFENRE BEE - A&
RAEmABEREHIIMT

RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEEE
2018 2017 2016 2015
2018 2017 F 2016 4F 20154
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAET FAET
Revenue g 111,862 71,399 46,016 110,839
Profit before tax R %5 BT Vi A 15,753 25,192 45,209 56,867
Income tax expense Frig Bl > (3,241) (2,727 (2,335) (3,567)
Profit for the year F N A 12,512 22,465 42,874 53,300
Profit for the year (excluding FREAM(TEIE TR
Listing expenses and RIS HERIIA)

financial guarantee income)

15,514 13,032 14,888 23,448

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BE  RERER

As at 31 December
M®12831H
2018 2017 2016 2015
2018 F 2017 4 2016 20154
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FHET

Current assets TmENEE 66,738 44,762 63,549 93,462
Non-current assets ERBEE 38,740 10,184 10 10
Total assets BEMRE 105,478 54,946 63,559 93,472
Current liabilities mEHAas 22,623 16,706 40,789 70,648
Non-current liabilities ERBHAERE 503 343 0 0
Total liabilities BEFE 23,126 17,049 40,789 70,648
Net assets BEFE 82,352 37,897 22,770 22,824
EQUITY R

Equity attributable to owners EIEARREIHE A

of the Company

82,352 37,897 22,770 22,824

Notes: The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 and of the
assets, liabilities and equity as at 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017
have been extracted from the Prospectus.

The financial information for the year ended 31 December 2014 were
not disclosed as consolidated financial statements for the Group have
not been prepared for such year. The summary above does not form
part of the audited financial statements.
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